

U. S. Agricultural Export Capabilities Under Various Price Alternatives, Regional Production Variations, and Fertilizer-Use Restrictions

CARD Report 63



THE CENTER FOR AGRICULTURAL AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY AMES, IOWA 50011



U.S. AGRICULTURAL EXPORT CAPABILITIES UNDER VARIOUS PRICE

1

ALTERNATIVES, REGIONAL PRODUCTION VARIATIONS,

AND FERTILIZER-USE RESTRICTIONS

by

Dan Dvoskin Earl O. Heady

CARD Report 63

This research study was completed under a grant from the RANN program (Research Applied to National Needs) of the National Science Foundation (GI-322990)

The Center for Agricultural and Rural Development

Iowa State University Ames, Iowa

December 1975



STATE LIBRARY COMMISSION OF IOWA Historical Building DES MOINES, IOWA 50319



PREFACE

Two major issues are causing concern about the future of the American agricultural sector, its interaction with the rest of the American economy, and the impacts on the consumer of the food and fiber products produced in agriculture. One of these concerns is the quality of the environment and restraints imposed on agriculture to improve it. Agriculture, the major user of land and water resources, contributes to environmental conditions through sedimentation, fertilizers, pesticides, and animal residues. The second issue is world hunger and demand for food and the potential for large increases in United States grain exports to assist in alleviating this hunger. Both of these developments, the imposition of environmental restraints on agriculture and larger exports of grains, can cause farm commodity prices to rise at the farm level and subsequently food costs to rise for domestic consumers. The World Food Conference held in Rome in 1974 emphasized the growing world concern for greater food output and trade in food commodities.

With emergence of these two important concerns, a question arises as to how they interact. Is it likely that imposition of selected environmental controls in agriculture would reduce United States food production and its exports to other countries? Or, does the nation have enough agricultural producing capacity so that "it can have its cake and eat it too" in the sense that cropping systems, soil loss, and fertilizer use can be restricted

i



but the nation can maintain or increase its exports? Is it possible, under normal weather conditions and economically efficient interregional allocations of water, crop production and land use, that limits on soil loss and fertilizer use could be implemented while maintaining the nation's food output? Before 1972, United States agriculture operated under supply controls wherein farmers were paid to withhold land from production. Since then controls have been lifted, but unfavorable weather has limited production in parts of the Great Plains and Corn Belt.

This study estimates output potential under alternative environmental restrictions by utilizing a large-scale interregional linear programming model. It provides results that give hopes for greater food output and an improved environment.

Numerous people and organizations contributed to this study. Howard Madsen and James Wade participated in initial steps of planning and model construction. Nancy Turner had major computer programming responsibility, and Vince Sposito assisted with the solution phase of the model. Kenneth J. Nicol made a very large contribution in the development of the model, interpreting the results, and offering suggestions in writing the manuscript. Other persons on the staff of the Center for Agricultural and Rural Develop-

ii

ment helped in the collection and the verification of data and results. The organizations that provided services, data, and other help include the RANN program of the National Science Foundation, which financed the study, and the Soil Conservation Service of the USDA, which supplied detailed data on soil loss for the many land resources groups, crops, and field technologies.

The Authors

.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

18.1

	Page
PREFACE	i
LIST OF FIGURES	vii
LIST OF TABLES	ix
I. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS	1
II. INTRODUCTION	18
The World Food Conference	18
Recent Developments in U.S. Food Production and Exports	19
Objective of the Study	20
Agriculture and the Environment	26
Pollution from agriculture	26
Fertilizer use	27
Models Evaluated and Their Assumptions	29
III. BASIC MODEL DESCRIPTION	33
Regional Delineation	34
The Objective Function	36
Restraints	39

Restraints at the producing area level	• • • • • • • • • • •	39
Restraints at the market region level	•••••	40
Restraints at the water supply region level		42
Restraints at the national levels		42
Environmental restraints		42

iii



NAME AND ADDRESS OF A DESCRIPTION OF A D

the second second second balance and the second secon

(2) The second s second se

		Page
	Activities	43
	Crop production activities	43
	Livestock production activities	44
	Transfer activities	-44
	Resource supply activities	44
	Commodity export activities	45
	Resources and Exogenous Demands Vector	45
	Determination of the soil loss levels	47
	Development of the crop yield coefficients	47
	Fertilizer-use coefficients for the crops	49
IV.	EXPORT RESPONSE TO RELATIVE COMMODITY PRICES	53
	Agricultural Production Under 1974-75 Government Target Prices (Model 1.1)	54
	Commodity production and utilization	54
	Land use	56
	Water use	56
	Regional location of production	61
	Regional impacts on commodity prices	64

iv

.

Soil loss and farming practices	67
gricultural Production Under Adjusted Target Prices	
Model 1.2)	70
Commodity production and utilization	70
Land use	72
Regional location of production	76



	Lage
Regional impacts on commodity prices	77
Feed consumed by livestock	78
Policy Implications	79
V. EXPORT CAPACITY OF U.S. AGRICULTURE AND REGIONAL PRODUCTION FLEXIBILITY	88
Production Location Patterns Restricted to 80 Percent of the 1969 Acres (Model 2.1)	89
Commodity production and utilization	90
Land use	91
Regional location of production and commodity prices	96
Feed consumed by livestock	97
Production Location Patterns Restricted to 50 Percent of the 1969 Acres (Model 2.2)	99
Regional location of production and commodity prices	100
Production Location Patterns With No Regional Production Restraints (Model 2.3)	102
Commodity production and utilization	102
Land use	104
Water use	107

V

.

Commodity prices and location of production	109
Feed consumed by livestock	112
olicy Implications and Export Capacity	113
Land use	116
Water use	120



	Page
Food cost and farm income	122
Environmental impact	125
VI. ANALYSIS OF FERTILIZER RESTRICTIONS UNDER VARYING EXPORT LEVELS	126
Fertilizer Restrictions Under Moderate Agricultural Exports in 1985 (Model 3.1)	127
. Commodity production and utilization	128
Nitrogen use	129
Yield reduction	130
Land use	130
Commodity prices and farm income	132
Fertilizer Restrictions Under High Agricultural Export in 1985 (Model 3.2)	s 133
Nitrogen use	134
Land use	135
Water use	137
Commodity prices	138
Policy Implications	139
Land for nitrogen substitution	140

ví

	Water use	143
	World food costs	143
REFERENCES	******	146



LIST OF FIGURES

Number		Page
1	U.S. exports, average 1969-1971, average 1972-1973, and potential in 1985	4
2	World exports of coarse grains	21
3	U.S. agricultural exports: Commercial and under govern- ment programs	22
4	The 90 producing areas	35
5	The 29 market regions	35
6	The 35 water supply regions	37
7	The seven major zones	37
8	Flow chart for yield developments and yield adjustments	51
9	Location of dryland and irrigated row crops under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1)	62
10	Location of endogenous row crops in 1969	62
11	Location of endogenous dryland and irrigated close-grown crops under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1)	63
12	Location of endogenous close-grown crops in 1969	63
13	Location of endogenous dryland and irrigated hay under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1)	65

- 14 Location of endogenous hay in 1969 65
- 16 Crop acreages for 1973, 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1), and adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) in 1985 83

vii



	-	- 6	-	
N.	010	- 1	- 5	
- R -	-	-		

Number		Page
17	Crop acreages for 1973, 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1), and adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) in 1985	84
18	Crop export levels under adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) and high export prices (Models 2.1 and 2.3) in 1985	115
19	Land rent prices (marginal value products) under adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) and high export prices (Models 2.1 and 2.3) in 1985	119
20	Water shadow prices (marginal value products) under ad- justed target prices (Model 1.2) and high export prices (Model 2.1) in 1985	121
21	Percent change in nitrogen use under moderate and high exports in 1985	141
22	Change in land rent price under restricted nitrogen use at moderate and high exports in 1985	142
23	Change in water prices under restricted nitrogen use at moderate and high exports in 1985	144





LIST OF TABLES

Number		Page
1	U.S. average commodity prices 1972, under 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1), and adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) in 1985	8
2	Summary of nitrogen fertilizer use in the 10 farm production regions and for the United States, 1949-1973	28
3	Summary of model alternatives included in the study and their main assumptions	30
4	U.S. total land base acreage in 1985	44
5	Projected national per capita commodity demands in 1985	46
6	U.S. average 1973 commodity prices, export prices under 1974-75 target price alternative (Model 1.1), and ad- justed target price alternative (Model 1.2) in 1985	53
7	Commodity production and utilization under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1)	55
8	Dryland acreages by major zones under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1)	57
9	Irrigated acreages by major zones under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1)	58
10	Cropland utilization by major zones under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1)	59

- 11 Withdrawal and consumptive use of water in the western river basins under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1)
- 12 U.S. average commodity supply, location, and total prices under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1) 66

60

13 Per acre erosion under conservation practices by major zones under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1) 68

ix



Number		Page
14	Acreages under conservation practices by major zones under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1)	69
15	Commodity production and utilization under adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2)	71
16	Dryland acreages by major zones under adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2)	73
17	Irrigated acreages by major zones under adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2)	74
18	Cropland utilization by major zones under adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2)	75
19	Acres of major crops under 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1), adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) in 1985, compared with 1973	75
20	U.S. average commodity supply, location, and total prices under adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2)	781
21	Feed consumption by class of livestock in the United States under adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2)	79
22	Feed consumption by class of livestock in the United States under adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2)	80
23	Land rents (marginal value products) under 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1) and adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) in 1985	86
24	Commodity export prices under the high export prices	

4

х

1.

	in 1985 (Models 2.1, 2.2, and 2.3) and actual 1973 prices	89
25	Commodity production and utilization under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1)	91
26	Dryland acreages by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1)	92
27	Irrigated acreages by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1)	94



Number		Page
28	Cropland utilization by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1)	95
29	Land rents (marginal value products) under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) and the high export prices (Model 2.1) in 1985	96
30	U.S. average commodity supply, location, and total prices under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1)	98
31	Feed consumption by class of livestock in the United States under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1)	99
32	U.S. average commodity supply, location, and total prices under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.2)	101
33	Commodity production and utilization under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3)	103
34	Dryland acreages by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3)	105
35	Irrigated acreages by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3)	106
36	Cropland utilization by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3)	108
37	Land rents (marginal value products) of alternative land classes by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3)	109
38	Withdrawals and consumptive use of water in the western river basins under high export prices in 1985	

xi

- 39 U.S. average commodity supply, location, and total prices under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3) 111
- 40 Feed consumption by class of livestock in the United States under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3) 112
- 41 Land use under adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) and high export prices (Models 2.1 and 2.3) in 1985 118



territe territe internet being and the second of the second beauty and the second beauty and the second beauty

A LOOM INC. I AND A REAL PROPERTY AND AND A REAL PROPERTY A REAL P

Number		Page
42	Commodity national average prices under adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) and high export prices (Models 2.1 and 2.3) in 1985	. 123
43	Other results summarizing adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) and high export prices (Models 2.1 and 2.3) in 1985	. 124
44	Nitrogen restriction levels assumed for each crop in 1985 under restricted nitrogen models (Models 3.1 and 3.2),	. 127
45	Commodity production and utilization under restricted nitrogen use at moderate exports in 1985 (Model 3.1)	. 128
46	Nitrogen use by major zones at moderate exports under unrestricted nitrogen use (Model 1.2) and re- stricted nitrogen use (Model 3.1) in 1985	. 129
47	Land use by major zones at moderate exports under un- restricted nitrogen use (Model 1.2) and restricted nitrogen use (Model 3.1) in 1985	. 131
48	U.S. average commodity supply, location, and total prices under restricted nitrogen use at moderate exports in 1985 (Model 3.1)	. 132
49	Nitrogen use by major zones at high exports under un- restricted nitrogen use (Model 2.1) and restricted nitrogen use (Model 3.2) in 1985	. 134
50	Land use by major zones at high exports under un- restricted nitrogen use (Model 2.1) and restricted nitrogen use (Model 3.2) in 1985	136

xii



I. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

This study is an analysis of United States agricultural producing and exporting capacity in 1985 under limited environmental controls on soil loss, fertilizer application, and variations in the flexibility of regional production distribution. The potential of production also is explored under two price regimes: one approaching the target prices under the Agricultural Act of 1973 [21] and the other at levels that may encourage all-out production by 1985.

These analyses of production potentials are made in response to the increased concerns about the world food situation. This growing concern has been expressed recently by the 1974 World Food Conference. The conference, meeting in Rome, pointed out that in order to prevent mass starvation, long-term increases in food production are needed in the developing countries as well as short-term increases in food production in the developed countries. The United States is the most important producer and exporter of farm products, accounting for more than half of the international trade in feed grains and 44 percent of the world wheat exports in 1974 [23].

Therefore, it is important to determine the role that the United States

could play in the coming years in helping to alleviate world food problems without compromising its own goals of environmental quality and low food costs. The analysis does not incorporate all dimensions of U.S. food-producing and exporting capacity; e.g., shifts in consumer diets

(except for lower meat demands resulting from higher meat prices), greater feed substitutions in livestock rations, and alternative utilizations of agricultural residues. These features are included in other studies upcoming in the Center for Agricultural and Rural Development (CARD) under its RANN project on U.S. food producing and export capacity. This study provides an initial view on the production and export capacity with special emphasis on the environmental impacts of these expanded outputs. The study addresses the issue of the mix, the level, and the production patterns which are compatible with agricultural production under variations in the relative prices for farm products, the absolute price level of these products, fertilizer use restrictions, and regional location of production restrictions.

The tool used for the study is a linear programming model which minimizes the total national cost of food production while maximizing the export of agricultural products after meeting prespecified domestic demands. A competitive equilibrium within the agricultural sector is estimated with the return to each resource (land and water) equal to its marginal value in production of farm commodities. Within the model the production allocation

2

is subject to a system of linear constraints representing land and water

availability, regional market clearing restraints, and the regional location

of production. Activities in the model simulate crop rotations, livestock

production, water transfer and distribution, commodity transportation,

and net export options.

In the following pages we summarize the three issues investigated in

¹Marginal value product of a resource is defined to be equal to the return for an additional unit of the resource employed in production.

this study. Although the issues seem somewhat unrelated, they do have important effects on the production and export potential of agricultural products. The first issue covered by the study is the determination of a desirable export mix as a function of the relative export prices. Second, the capacity of the U.S. farming sector to produce and export the desirable mix of farm products is studied under much higher absolute price levels. Both issues are related to the environmental restraints expressed in terms of limited soil erosion and fertilizer use in agricultural production. The final issue investigated involves the impact of restrictions on fertilizer use.

is-

5.

1

190

110

The model results show that under environmental programs in the form of soil loss and fertilizer-use restrictions applied nationwide, exports could be very large in 1985. Production could be increased by improved farming practices to achieve soil and moisture conservation, a location of production more directly influenced by the regional comparative advantage, and a better and more efficient utilization of land and water resources. Figure 1 summarizes the export potential of U.S. agriculture under high export prices and optimum crop specialization for the seven crops; corn, sorghum, barley, oats, soybeans, wheat, and cotton. Despite the very large

3

export of agricultural commodities during 1972-73, the results indicate a much larger potential for U.S. export if the adjustments of the model are realized. Compared with 1972-73 averages, exports of feed grains by 1985 could increase almost 400 percent, wheat almost 180 percent, and cotton by about 230 percent.



The results summarized here show great U.S. agricultural capacity. In fact, if world demand and weather are stabilized, U.S. agriculture may be more concerned with large supplies and low farm prices rather than the inability to fulfill export markets. U.S. agriculture, in years of normal weather or over time with grain reserves to offset variable weather, can produce large quantities of food to aid in solving the world food problem. However, the markets or institutional means must exist to insure prices that reward U.S. farmers for this larger output.

Through the period 1970-73, U.S. farm policy was oriented toward production control and price support programs aimed at stabilizing farm output and prices. Most of these programs incorporated the concept of support prices (target prices) based on parity. The Agricultural Act of 1973 is the most recent attempt of the United States Congress to depart from the parity price concept [21]. In the first part of this study, we show the possibility of achieving an alternative mix of export commodities through the judicious selection of the appropriate target prices.

Two alternatives are used in the first part of the study; they are identical in all assumptions except for export prices. Under the first alternative (Model 1.1), 1974-75 target prices as specified in the Agricultural Act of 1973 are assigned as export prices for corn, wheat, and cotton. For the other export crops, export prices are equal to 60 percent of May 1973 parity prices [18]. The second alternative (Model 1.2) adjusts the magnitudes of these prices to provide a mix of exports more in line with the current export trends. The relative prices of the exported commodities

are changed such that corn, barley, and sorghum export prices increase and, at the same time, cotton and wheat export prices decrease. The export prices of soybeans and oats remain unchanged.

The results of the first two alternatives show clearly that the export mix of U.S. agricultural products in 1985 can be readily influenced by the relative export prices. The 1974-75 target prices tend to encourage the export of wheat and cotton. On the other hand, the adjusted target prices tend to encourage feed grain exports and to suppress wheat and cotton exports to levels near their 1972-73 averages. For the calendar years 1972-73, the average feed grains exports were 1.3 billion bushels [6]. This is close to the 1.4 billion bushels of feed grains available for export in 1985 under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) and is well above the 0.6 billion bushels of feed grains that could be available in 1985 under the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1).

The different price support policies can have further implications on the long-run regional distribution of production and farm income. If the relative support prices in 1985 are set according to the prices specified in the Agricultural Act of 1973, both cotton and wheat producers should have a much higher level of production and total farm income. Feed grain producers, however, can be expected to decrease production and receive less income by 1985.

6

Overall land-use patterns under both alternatives reflect the higher rate of domestic demand brought about by a 242 million U.S. population in 1985 and the estimated per capita consumption levels as influenced by the commodity prices and per capita incomes. Under the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1), 324.7 million acres are utilized for production of endogenous crops,² while under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2), 331.5 million acres are cultivated for the same endogenous crops in 1985. In 1973 the same crops used 303 million acres [19]. Some of the important findings of land-use analysis are concerned with the increase in silage production to reflect a.more efficient ration for livestock and a larger proportion of legume hay acreages, encouraged by increased carry-over nitrogen associated with legumes.

Domestic farm level commodity prices (measured in 1972 dollars) are closely related to the export prices used in each model (Table 1). Most prices obtained in both alternatives are lower than 1972 levels. The rise in prices since 1972 is a result of the increase in agricultural exports impacting on a short-run inelastic supply. The prices determined by the model reflect a long-run adjustment to the determined export levels.

n

The price support system was abandoned in 1972. However, good weather and expanding production could once more lead to surpluses requiring government support programs. Under this situation, the relative support prices would have an influence on the subsequent mix of the agricultural

7

products as exhibited in the analysis of the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1) and adjusted target prices (Model 1.2). Policy makers aware of the way in which the relative support prices can effect the production and export mix

The endogenous crops include barley, corn, corn silage, cotton, legume and nonlegume hay, sorghum, soybeans, sorghum silage, sugar beets, and wheat. should gear their policies to obtain the most desirable production level and mix.

Table 1. U.S. average commodity prices 1972, under 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1), and adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) in 1985.

Commodity	Unit	1972 ^a	Model 1.1	Model 1.2
		(ċ	lollars per unit)	
Corn	(Bu.)	1.57	1.32	1.40
Sorghum	(Bu.)	2.45	1.63	1.78
Barley	(Bu.)	1.21	1.32	1.28
Oats	(bu.)	.73	.65	.68
Wheat	(Bu.)	1.76	1.83	1.82
Soybeans	(Bu.)	4.37	2.73	2.66
Cotton	(Lb.)	.27	.38	.32
Pork	(Cwt.)	55.22	40.61	42.05
Milk	(Cwt.)	6.07	5.11	5.22
Beef	(Cwt.)	58.77	74.20	74.00

8

^aSource: Statistical Reporting Service [17].

Three alternatives are analyzed in the second part of the study. All alternatives specify export prices that are double the adjusted target prices to encourage all-out production. The alternatives assume a limited environmental restriction which calls for a five-ton per acre maximum soil loss and differ only with respect to the restrictions placed on the regional
location of production. Under the alternative with the most restricted location of production (Model 2.1), production of the specified crops in each region is required to be at least 80 percent, and not more than 200 percent, of the 1969 crop acres or livestock number for corn, sorghum, cotton, soybeans, wheat, legume hay, beef cows, fed beef, hogs, and dairy cows [24]. The upper limit is modified to 300 percent of the 1969 level for livestock numbers and legume hay acreage. Under the less restricted location of production alternative (Model 2.2), the 80 percent restrictions are reduced to 50 percent of 1969 while maintaining the above upper limits. Finally, the third alternative (Model 2.3) assumes no restrictions on production location. The above restrictions, although somewhat arbitrary, represent an increase in regional efficiency because of interregional shifts of resources and increased specialization.

The goal of the three models (2.1, 2.2, and 2.3), presented in the second part of the study, is to evaluate the impact of less than optimal regional location of production.³ This phenomena is due to economic factors such as risk aversion, uncertainty as to future farm prices and governmental policies, and noneconomic factors such as the desire to live in the country. If the regional location of production is an important factor, effecting export levels and prices, then governmental farm policy should be directed toward guaranteed minimum prices, crop insurance, and financial means which encourage farmers to adopt crops and livestock enterprises more consistent with the optimal regional location of production.

9

³An optimal or an efficient regional location of production is defined to be that regional production pattern in which any shift of production from one region to another will lead to lower production and/or higher costs. The results summarized here and presented in the text indicate that under high exports, a more efficient location of production is responsible for somewhat higher exports and lower output prices. The higher exports obtained, however, are mostly because of doubling the export prices, rather than achieving a more efficient regional location of production. Hence, given these high exports, a more efficient regional location of production can be expected to have relatively small impact when compared with the high export price impact.

The great 1985 export potential of U.S. agriculture (Figure 1) has important implications for U.S. agriculture. Under high export prices and optimum regional location of production, it would be possible to increase feed grain exports from their 1973 level of 1.7 billion bushels [6] to as high as 5.5 billion bushels by 1985. At the same time, wheat exports would be increased from 1.4 billion bushels in 1973 to almost 2.0 billion bushels in 1985. Soybean exports could be increased to almost 1.8 billion bushels and cotton exports to 10.0 million bales by 1985. These increases may seem large and are only realizable if the changes assumed by the study would occur.

10

The above export levels, if attained, could turn the agricultural industry into one of the most important U.S. exporting industries by 1985. During the 1969-71 period, only one of every 10 acres of feed grains harvested produced grain for export [22]. By 1985, almost one of every two acres could produce grain for export. The proportion of wheat acreage produced for export could reach 74 percent by 1985, while soybean and cotton acreages for export could reach 63 and 55 percent, respectively. The above results, especially those concerned with export potential, can only be obtained under a very specific set of conditions. These conditions include the amount of resources available to agriculture (land and water) by 1985; higher-than-current yields obtained from improved utilization of rotations, fertilizers, and farming technologies under average weather conditions; improved regional location of crop and livestock production; increased utilization of hay and silage by livestock; and a lower-than-present per capita consumption of meat in 1985. These conditions of further technological and economic improvement for U.S. agriculture appear feasible by 1985.

The effect of the historic allocation of production is analyzed in terms of Model 2.1. Under the regional location of production mentioned earlier, exports will be somewhat lower than the levels obtained with the removal of all regional location or production restrictions. The change in the 1985 export levels, caused by the less efficient regional production pattern, includes only a slight alteration of feed grains. Wheat and soybean exports are lower by nearly 200 and 300 million bushels, respectively. Other changes, such as lower domestic commodity prices and a nationally less efficient use of resources, also result from the restrained production

11

pattern.

The substantial increase in agricultural exports implies long-run changes in the availability and use of resources in agriculture. The supply of the less mobile resources in agriculture, such as land and water, is very inelastic. Even though given enough time, land can be reclaimed and additional irrigation can be developed. The supply of other resources, such as fertilizer, other chemicals, and capital inputs, is more elastic, both in the short-run and the long-run. A total of 373.6 million acres of dry and irrigated cropland are available for the endogenous crops in 1985.4 Under the high export price alternative with no restrictions on regional location of production (Model 2.3), 363.6 million acres are cultivated, more than 97 percent of the available land. 5 With high export prices at the level assumed for this analysis, U.S. agriculture will almost completely use all of the cropland available. Ninety percent of the idle land (about nine million acres) is on land classes characterized by lower productivity and susceptibility to soil erosion rates which, in most cases, exceeds the five-ton per acre soil erosion level allowed. In order to completely utilize the land resources in the United States, the highly erosive lands will need to be developed to control erosion or be transferred into less-intensive uses than specified in the analysis. In some cases, soil conservation measures not only reduce soil loss but also contribute to higher yields.

The high degree of land utilization mentioned above is reflected in

12

land rents. The national average land rent triples in value (from \$31.59 per acre to \$108.35 per acre) as export prices double from the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) to the high export prices (Model 2.3) in 1985. This phenomenon, as the change in land prices during 1972-73 showed, is

⁴The available land reflects the needs for the production of the other crops not included in the model's allocation.

⁵In 1973 the same crops accounted for only 303.0 million acres [19].

due mainly to the higher commodity prices reflected in higher return to resources employed in agriculture.

The quantity of water used responds less to the high export prices than does land use because most of the water that would be used for raising crops is already utilized in producing the lower exports. The higher commodity prices contribute to a 55 percent increase in the marginal value product of water (from \$12.59 per acre-foot to \$19.53 per acre-foot), as more demand is put on the inelastic water supply in those regions where it is the limiting resource.

The second part of the study indicates a great potential of agricultural production and exports by 1985, even with no further water development after 1980. The major problem facing agriculture in 1985 will be to find markets for its expanded outputs. Any additional resource development, such as water for irrigation, will contribute to even higher production, excess capacity, and declining prices for agricultural commodities--unless the markets can be obtained to handle the additional quantities indicated at the higher prices considered. Under the higher regional return to water, further water supply development may be economically feasible in some regions. However, regional water development should be evaluated from the national agricultural viewpoint and also by considering its impact on farm income stability, regional and rural development, and the environment. The potentially high export levels of U.S. agricultural products by 1985 raise many other issues which are not covered by this study. However, a high level of agricultural exports could have a noticeable effect

13

on the U.S. balance of payments. The recent deficit in the balance of payments has been amplified by the formation of the OPEC (Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries) cartel and the sharp increase in oil prices during 1973-74. This deficit could be offset by a higher value of agricultural exports by 1985. The total net value of the seven exported crops in this study could reach \$33.8 billion by 1985 if sold at the prices assumed in the study. This compares with the total value of food and fiber exports in the 1973 record year of \$17.7 billion [6]. If, however, exports of agricultural commodities fail to expand much beyond 1972-73 levels, domestic agricultural commodity prices will fall below their 1973-74 levels.⁶ Under this situation, the government may be pressed to either support prices while subsequently disposing of the surplus production accumulated, or to control production in order to keep prices from declining.

The last section of the study deals with the possible economic effects of restrictions on the use of chemical fertilizers in the United States. This situation may develop either because of environmental concern for nitrogen leaching and runoff or because of a shortage of fertilizer compounds.

14

⁶Despite the bad year for agriculture in 1974, the average domestic prices of the commodities continued to fall throughout the last quarter of 1974. By January 15, 1975, the price of wheat was down to \$4.11 per bushel from \$4.87 per bushel on November 15, 1974; the price of corn was down to \$3.07 per bushel from \$3.45 per bushel on October 15, 1974; the price of oats was down to \$1.62 per bushel from \$1.70 per bushel on November 15, 1974; the price of soybeans was down to \$6.30 per bushel from \$8.17 per bushel on October 15, 1974; and the price of cotton was down to \$.42 per pound from \$.52 per pound on October 15, 1974. <u>Agricultural Prices</u>, Dec. 15, 1974, and Jan. 15, 1975. The concern for fertilizer availability is further amplified by the potential for a larger planted acreage in response to the recent high exports bringing an increase in commodity prices.

A close relationship exists between nitrogen fertilizer and energy. Approximately, 40,000 cubic feet of natural gas are required to produce one ton of anhydrous ammonia [3], the major nitrogen fertilizer used in the United States and also a major ingredient component of other nitrogen fertilizers. Prices of all fertilizers have more than doubled since 1972, with nitrogen fertilizers displaying the largest increase.

The effect of a fertilizer-use restriction is quite different when applied at different levels of output in the agricultural sector. Hence, the study deals with the economic impacts of fertilizer application restrictions under the moderate export levels associated with the adjusted target price alternative and under high exports derived in the restrained high export price model. The procedure used involves first solving the unrestricted fertilizer use alternatives for the two 1985 export levels, and subsequently requiring each of the restricted fertilizer use alternatives to export the identical quantities obtained under the unrestricted fertilizer situation.

S.

15

Reduced nitrogen use, resulting from the fertilizer restrictions, is much larger under high exports than under moderate exports, as the higher return to nitrogen fertilizer under the higher export prices encourages its use. Land is substituted for fertilizer in each of the analyses developed in this part of the study. At the moderate export level, nitrogen use is reduced more than 7 percent (1.2 billion pounds of N), and land use is up by 0.63 percent (2.1 million acres) as the restriction is implemented. However, under the high export alternative, nitrogen use declines more than 11 percent (2.7 billion pounds of N), and land use increases 0.9 percent (3.2 million acres). This leads to a marginal rate of land-fornitrogen substitution of one acre for every 560 and 830 pounds of nitrogen under moderate and high exports, respectively.⁷

The land-for-nitrogen substitution results in a substantial increase in land rents and water values as the resulting higher commodity prices increase the return to these resources. The average land rent increases by less than 5 percent under moderate exports as the fertilizer use restrictions are imposed, while under the high exports the land rent increases 43 percent for some regional land classes. The average increase in water prices is quite small (less than 2 percent) under the moderate exports and almost 14 percent under the high exports.

The increase in commodity prices leads to an increase in food costs and agricultural resource returns. Under moderate exports, the per capita

16

cost of food and fiber (includes only the raw endogenous commodities) increases by only 1 percent (\$2.03 per capita per year in 1972 dollars) as a result of the restriction on fertilizer use. However, when maintaining high exports, the cost of food increases by more than 16 percent (\$31.34

'Marginal rate of land-for-nitrogen substitution is defined to be the amount of nitrogen reduction that can be obtained by using an additional acre of cultivated land given no change in the overall production level. per capita per year in 1972 dollars) as a result of the fertilizer use restriction. These figures more than any other represent the great differences in the effects of the fertilizer use restriction.

Farmers could be better off in 1985 under a restricted fertilizer use policy at both export levels since food demand is inelastic. Under moderate exports, farm income, defined as the total return to land, water, and labor, increases by less than 4 percent (\$0.6 billion 1972 dollars), while under the high export levels, farm income increases almost 40 percent (\$14.9 billion) as a result of the restriction on fertilizer use. The additional income is mostly distributed between land and water owners, and if these are synonymous with the farmers, then total income is increased by the fertilizer restrictions.

S

Currently, the feasibility of fertilizer-use restrictions seems a remote possibility. However, a short nitrogen supply in the future may have the same effect. Restrictions on fertilizer use and their effects under different export levels can be easily imputed from the analysis provided in the study. In short, unless exports reach the high levels obtained in the study under high export prices, fertilizer restrictions, or nitrogen shortages in general, may have only minor effects on the capacity

17

of the nation's agricultural sector and the cost of food produced by it.

II. INTRODUCTION

Foreign demand for U.S. agricultural products has changed drastically over the last four years. Although domestic demand in future years can be estimated with relatively minor error, foreign demand is highly uncertain at this time. It is subject not only to weather conditions in other countries, but also is greatly affected by political decisions, the world monetary situation, population, and development programs of other countries.

The World Food Conference

The World Food Conference, sponsored by the United Nations and held in Rome in November 1974, was an expression of growing international concern about the critical nature of the world's food situation. Nineteen substantive resolutions, plus a concluding resolution calling for followup action, were adopted at the conference. The conference agreed that a substantial increase in food production is needed in the developing countries and that short-term increases are needed in the developed countries to

lessen the world's current vulnerability to crop shortfalls. One proposal for greater production calls for a survey of land resources to determine food production potential. Another resolution, named the World Soil Character and Land Capability Assessment, recommends that governments apply soil protection and conservation measures in all attempts to increase agricultural production [7]. A resolution concerning fertilizer was passed. Among other things, it says, "All countries are requested to

18

introduce fertilizer quality standards; promote the most efficient use of fertilizers, including utilization of nonmineral sources of plant nutrients; and to voluntarily reduce noncritical uses" [7]. The achievement of the World Food Conference cannot be fully assessed at this time because its impact will depend on how governments, international organizations, and others respond to the conference recommendations.

Recent Developments in U.S. Food Production and Exports

ly

be

-

es.

ern

ries

SE.

Recently, several studies have been completed on the world food situation. Three important ones are: Food and Agriculture Organization's (FAO) recent "Assessment of the World Food Situation, Present and Future" [8], prepared for the World Food Conference; Iowa State University's Center for Agricultural and Rural Development (CARD) study, "World Food Production, Demand and Trade" [1], published in 1973; and finally, the Economic Research Service of the USDA has completed, "The World Food Situation and Prospects to 1985" [7], a summary of some of the previous studies mentioned.

Before 1972, the world experienced two decades of expanding food production, even surpluses, of grains and other foods. Per capita food production was on the increase nearly every year in that period. Then in 1972 the index of world per capita food production fell from 108 in 1971 (1961-65 = 100) to 104 in 1972 [7], with the decline in production concentrated in the developing countries.

19

The subsequent demand for U.S. agricultural commodities led to the suspension of the policies that restrained U.S. productive capacity.

Annual exports of U.S. feed grains more than doubled from 1970 to 1974, and the United States has become the world's most important exporter of feed grains (Figure 2), accounting for more than half of the international trade. The United States is the world's leading wheat exporter, accounting for 44 percent of the world exports in 1974 while producing only 13 percent of the world's supply [23]. Similar increases have occurred in other commodities, such as soybeans and cotton.

The higher prices of the agricultural commodities accompanied by the higher quantities exported resulted in more than a 300 percent increase in the value of U.S. agricultural exports between 1970 and 1974 (Figure 3). This, in turn, increased agriculture's net contribution to the balance of payments from less than one billion dollars in 1970 to more than eight billion dollars in 1973 [23]. Hence, U.S. agriculture has become not only the world's most important food supplier, but also food has become a major economic force in the nation's international economic position.

Objective of the Study

This study is made as one appraisal of the United States food-producing

20

capacity over the next decade. Many world leaders and agricultural experts continue to believe that the growth in world food demand of the magnitude reflected thus far into the 1970s will put a continued and heavy pressure on world food supplies. The expected result, worldwide, is high prices to consumers and producers in all countries. Therefore, it is very important to determine the capacity of the farming sector to supplement the growing



Figure 2. World exports of coarse grains.^a

^aSource: U.S. Dept. of Agr. [23].



government programs.^a

^aSource: U.S. Dept. of Agr. [23].

world demand for agricultural products. The potential capacity of U.S. agriculture is greatly influenced by the mix of the crops grown and the growing concern in the United States for environmental improvements. This study provides an estimate of the export capacity of U.S. agriculture and also analyzes alternative desirable export crop mixes. The analysis of these two issues is subject to environmental restrictions that control soil loss and fertilizer use.

The specific objective of this study is to estimate U.S. food-producing and export capacity for the year 1985 by means of a specific mathematical programming model developed for U.S. agriculture under a NSF-RANN (National Science Foundation--Research Applied to National Needs) grant. The original purpose of the ISU-RANN model was to examine certain impacts of environmental and technological limitations on the producing and income abilities of agriculture, but this type of model also is adapted to evaluation of U.S. food exporting capacity under various conditions of restraints on resource use, environmental limits, and technology. The initial model included 223 agricultural producing areas, 51 water supply regions, and 30 market or consuming regions, with a complex set of interdependencies among resources, commodities, and regions reflected through an interregional transportation network and both national and regional markets. Although this larger model is still being used, an alternative model that has largescale and detailed analytical capability but lower solution costs has also been developed. The model used in this study is such a "reduced model."

23

Because U.S. and world food problems have become so intense, the current

model is used to estimate the nation's food-producing and export capacity in 1985 when limited environmental restrictions in terms of soil loss and commercial fertilizer use are applied to production.

This model's application in measuring producing and exporting capacity is one step in an ongoing process of developing models related to U.S. agricultural resource use and producing capacity. Other studies underway test U.S. production capacity under different environmental restraints, substitutions in the rations of livestock and diets of humans, and technological assumptions.

The current model determines the supply capacity, productivity, income potential, food prices, regional distribution of production, and other economic impacts that might prevail under a selected set of environmental conditions for U.S. agriculture. The main objective is to estimate agriculture's capacity to export food and natural fibers, subject to a set of minimum and maximum regional production requirements, a limited set of environmental restraints expressed in terms of practices that restrain sediment losses and limit commercial nitrogen fertilizer application,

24

and predetermined levels of domestic demand for the commodities. The study encompasses all land, water, and other resources representing U.S. agriculture and the majority of the commodities it produces. The basic tool used in the analysis is a detailed interregional, multicommodity, and multiresource model that measures interrelationships among all commodities, resources, and regions of farming.

Answers to the following specific questions are the main thrust of

the model: 1. Given a set of environmental restraints and the historic pattern of production, how do changes in the relative prices paid to farmers affect the level and the mix of the U.S. farm basket available for export? 2. What are the impacts of changes in relative farm commodity prices on farm income and food costs? 3. Assuming great demand for U.S. farm products abroad, what could be the level of future farm exports? 4. What are the effects of "less-than-optimal location" of production patterns on the export capacity of U.S. agriculture? 5. What are the impacts of high export levels, accompanied by a high price level, on farm income and the consumer food bill? 6. If soil loss and fertilizer use are restricted, what are the consequences on consumer food costs at different export levels.

The study is made in relation to the year 1985, a date far enough in the future to allow adjustments in agriculture so as to approach the new world market situation that might exist by that time. A domestic population of 242 million people is assumed and combined with projected levels of domestic per capita consumption of agricultural goods.

The study does not attempt to evaluate the future export demand for U.S. agricultural products. Export demand estimation for the few years ahead is complicated by several very large climatic, institutional, economic, and political uncertainties. Our analysis is an attempt to assess U.S. agricultural producing capacity and its ability to aid in meeting the international demand regardless of the means through which it may be distributed. In this study we only touch on the effect which higher

25

y

exports might have on the U.S. environment, resource conditions, and income distribution between farmers and consumer groups.

Agriculture and the Environment

Part of this study deals with productivity under conditions of certain environmental controls in agriculture. Environmental quality has become a concern of increasing intensity to many Americans in relation to national growth, population distribution, developing technology, and other features of advanced and developed societies. In many ways, agriculture is well prepared to deal with these concerns of society, relative to other sectors of the economy. Agricultural history is engrained with a variety of environmental and resource conservation programs applied in past decades. However, concern of environmental and resource use problems for agriculture have intensified as exports have increased abruptly and the nation is putting more and more land under cultivation. Too, the high prices of grain under this export regime encourage increased levels of chemical application (wherever the chemicals are available and have not increased so

26

greatly in price).

Pollution from agriculture

Through runoff and sedimentation, soil loss is a major source of nonpoint pollution through agriculture.⁸ Not only does silt find its way into major streams and water bodies, but also it serves as the major transportation

⁸Nonpoint pollution is pollution than cannot be traced to a specific geographical location. Feedlots, on the other hand, are examples of point pollution.

mechanism for some of the nitrogen compounds, phosphorus, and some pesticides. The levels of soil loss limits per acre, five and ten tons, are examined in this study as applied to all land resource groups. Some land resource groups now have annual per acre soil losses exceeding 150 tons per acre.

In the case of nitrogen, possible sources include fertilizer, nitrogen fixed by legumes, mineralization, barnyard manure, plant residues (roots and trash), and rainfall. Nitrogen is removed from the land through harvested crops, erosion, leaching of soil and fertilizer nitrogen, and denitrification. Since nitrogen pollution can be derived from any of these sources, it is difficult if not impossible to determine the relative importance of each [16]. The problem is further complicated when nitrogen in streams, wells, and lakes may also come from such additional sources as feedlots and municipal waste treatment plants [14]. In other words, it is difficult to determine the relative importance of each source of nitrogen in the water.

Fertilizer use

60

point

The use of all fertilizer has increased by nearly 400 percent over

27

the past two decades (Table 2). More importantly, the amount of nitrogen fertilizer has increased nearly sixfold [4]. Regionally, the Corn Belt, with large acreages of row crops, has shown a dramatic increase in the amount of nitrogen fertilizer applied consistent with the high return to nitrogen in the production of corn.

	1949	-1975.											
Period		Lake States	Corn Belt	Northern Plains	Appa- lachian	South- east	Delta States	Southern Plains	Mountain	Pacific	United States		
	North- east										Nitrogen	All plant nutrients	
		5			(000 ton	s)							
1949 - 54 Average	111	49	222	50	205	267	182	57	47	184	1,430	3,635	
1955-59 Average	147	113	398	135	244	341	227	124	94	314	2,197	4,848	
1960-64 Average	183	183	815	344	304	434	265	302	161	434	3,484	6,712 28	
1965-69 Average	249	381	1,759	738	417	576	317	588	283	587	5,948	10,652	
1970	271	538	2,125	1,093	478	674	369	839	375	646	7,459	12,805	
1971	296	698	2,307	1,078	507	685	404	840	383	672	7,925	13,480	
1972	273	657	2,124	1,179	491	723	477	896	406	738	7,995	17,170	
19 73 ^a	317	680	2,085	1,319	529	750	443	922	465	779	8,319	17,780	

Table 2. Summary of nitrogen fertilizer use in the 10 farm production regions and for the United States, 1949-1973.

Source: Economic Research Service [4:5].

^a Preliminary. Not only has more land been fertilized over the last two decades, but also the quantity of fertilizer applied per acre has been increasing. The average acre of corn for grain fertilized in 1947 received 10 pounds of nitrogen, 23 pounds of phosphorus, and 12 pounds of potassium. However, by 1969 each fertilized acre of corn for grain received 109 pounds of nitrogen, 52 pounds of phosphorus, and 62 pounds of potassium. Other crops also have been receiving increasing amounts of fertilizer, but rates of application have been considerably less than for corn [4].

This study deals with restrictions on the use of fertilizers in agriculture. Major emphasis is directed toward the impact on commodity prices if fixed levels of exports are to be maintained.

Models Evaluated and Their Assumptions

The producing and export capacity of U.S. agriculture in relation to pricing policy, response flexibilities, and the environment is evaluated under seven different model alternatives (Table 3). The seven models are divided into three sets. The details of the models will be explained in later sections of the report, and initial complexities that the reader may encounter in interpreting Table 3 will then disappear.

29

Set one contains two alternatives (Models 1.1 and 1.2). The analysis of these alternatives is aimed toward evaluating the impacts of a change in the relative prices of the agricultural commodities exported. Model 1.1 assumes that farmers receive the government's 1974-75 target prices specified in the 1973 Agricultural Act [21] for their grains. Model 1.2

> STATE LIBRARY CO. STATE LIBRARY CO. Historical Building MOINES, IOWA 50319

			Export prices	Crop location ^b restrictions max min (percent)		Livestock ² lo- cation re- strictions ^b max min (percent)		Soil loss limit ton/acre	Export	Fertilizer use re- strictions	
Set One	Model	1.1	1974-75 target prices	200	80	300	80	10	none	none	
	Mode1	1.2	adjusted target price	200 s	80	300	80	10	none	none	
Set Two	Model	2.1	high export prices	200	80	300	80	5	corn ^C cotton	none	
	Model	2.2	high export prices	200	50	300	50	5	corn cotton	none	
	Mode1	2.3	high export	none	none	none	none	5	corn ^c cotton	none	
Set Three	Model	3.1	adjusted target prices	200	80	300	80	10	Model 1. level	2 110 1b 55 1b	
	Model	3.2	high export prices	200	80	300	80	5	Model 2. level	1 110 1b ^d 55 1b	

Summary of model alternatives included in the study and their main assumptions.^a Table 3.

All alternatives use a 1985 time horizon and 242 million as the expected population.

^b Crop location restriction is in terms of percent of 1969 crop acreage or livestock unit produced. ^c Corn is restricted to a maximum export of 3.5 billion bushels per year. Cotton is restricted to

a maximum of 10 million bales per year.

^dNitrogen application is restricted to 110 lb. N per acre for corn and sorghum and 55 lb. N per acre for barley, oats, wheat; cotton is restricted to 80 lb. N per acre.

30

is a variation on the price assumption of Model 1.1. In this model the government's 1974-75 target prices are adjusted in such a way that the overall export level is not affected. However, the mix of products being exported is changed to be more in line with historic patterns. The combination of the results of these two alternatives is used to evaluate the impacts of changes in the relative prices and also to indicate how relative prices can be used as a tool by the policy maker wishing to control the output mix.

her

Z

· a T

0

2

P I

"nappo

TOT

Set two contains three alternatives (Models 2.1, 2.2, and 2.3). The analysis of this set is aimed toward evaluating U.S. agricultural export capacity under varying rates of production location adjustment. In all three models the prices assigned to the export activities are double the adjusted target price level used in Model 1.2. The alternatives of set two simulate the aggregate farm response to a much higher commodity price level than Model 1.2. The varying degree of location adjustment is defined in terms of the minimum and maximum number of acres or number of livestock units produced in each of the market regions. The first alternative in set two (Model 2.1) assumes a similar interregional adjustment as the alternatives in set one. The second alternative (Model 2.2) allows a greater rate of interregional adjustment, and the third alternative (Model 2.3) allows for complete adjustment of the regional production pattern consistent with the higher commodity price. In the alternatives of set two, an environmental restraint is expressed in terms of a soil loss restriction at a maximum of five tons per acre per year.

31

The third analysis contains two alternatives (Models 3.1 and 3.2). Set three is aimed toward analyzing the effect of fertilizer use restriction, either in response to an energy shortage or environmental concern. Instead of trying to measure the export capacity under a restricted fertilizer situation, the alternatives assume exports are maintained at the levels obtained in the analysis of the respective base alternatives in sets one and two.

Model 3.1 assumes exports fixed at the level obtained in the analysis of the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) and provides a benchmark for comparison of the effects of fertilizer limitations on land and water use, farm income, and food prices under moderate export levels.

Similarly, Model 3.2 assumes exports fixed at the level obtained under the higher export price alternative (Model 2.1) and provides an indication of the effect of fertilizer restrictions under a situation of "full capacity." The comparison of the two models in set three allows for some discussion as to the different effect of the fertilizer restriction under different levels of production and export.

Other assumptions could also be examined. However, the seven alternatives described in this study provide important insights into questions of U.S. agricultural export capacity in relation to environmental impacts.

III. BASIC MODEL DESCRIPTION

Many of the model's parameters used in the study are derived from previous ISU-RANN and CARD studies [9, 13]. Explanation of these parameters is in <u>A Model for Regional Agricultural Analysis</u> [12].

The linear programming model used in the study minimizes the cost of food production and transportation. At the same time it maximizes the export of,agricultural products after meeting prespecified domestic demands. The model assumes a long-run competitive equilibrium wherein returns to resources are equal to their marginal value in production. The constraints of the model correspond to the land and water supplies by region, production requirements by location, the nature of production, and a market sector constraint which equate supply and demand for the endogenous commodities. There are 1,564 restraints (rows) in the model and 9,795 activities (columns) that simulate crop rotations, livestock production, water transfer and distribution, commodity transportation, and net export activities.

Endogenous crop variables are corn grain, sorghum grain, corn silage, sorghum silage, wheat, soybeans, cotton, sugar beets, oats, barley, legume hay, and nonlegume hay. The production of the other crops (fruits, vegetables, tobacco, potatoes, rice, peanuts, buckwheat, etc.) are determined exogenously. Endogenous livestock activities include beef cows, beef feeding, dairy cows, and hogs. Turkeys, broilers, eggs, sheep and lambs, and other livestock are exogenously determined.

33

Regional Delineation

The three sets of regions used in the basic mdoel are producing, consuming (market), and water supply regions. The consuming and water supply regions are defined from a compatible subset of the producing areas and reflect the interregional nature of the analysis. For reporting purposes only, another set of regions is defined by aggregating adjacent consuming regions into the seven major zones: North Atlantic, South Atlantic, North Central, South Central, Great Plains, Southwest, and Northwest.

The producing areas (Figure 4) are based on county approximations of the Water Resource Council's 206 subareas [26]. Each of the 90 producing areas in the study consists of a set of contiguous counties and forms a watershed with a common tributary and in which the agricultural crop activities are defined.

The 29 market regions are an aggregation of contiguous producing areas (Figure 5). In addition, the livestock, nitrogen buying, and export activities are defined in these regions. The consuming regions, besides representing market centers, provide the basic network for commodity transportation.

34

Thirty-five water supply regions are defined in the western half of the United States (Figure 6). These regions consist of contiguous counties in which a dependable water supply can be said to exist. They were obtained by aggregation of water supply regions defined by the Water Resources Council [26].



Figure 4. The 90 producing areas.



35

Figure 5. The 29 market regions.

S

ed

cil

Seven major zones are utilized to facilitate reporting of the results (Figure 7). These zones consist of aggregations of adjacent market regions. All results reported in the above regions are weighted averages of the market regions' results.

The Objective Function

The objective function minimizes the cost of production (labor, machinery, pesticides, fertilizer, water, and feed) and the cost of transporting agricultural raw products from location of production to the market region. In addition, for export maximization, a given negative price is assigned to each export activity. The model will increase the export activity until the cost of producing and transporting another unit of commodity for export becomes greater than the price (cost) of the export activity for that commodity.

The objective function is subject to given domestic demand, resource availability, minimum and maximum production levels in a given area, environmental goals, and the technology assumed to exist in 1985. It is of the form:

36

(1)

i = 1,...,90 for the 90 producing areas,

j = 1,..., 9 for the 9 possible soil groups in producing area i,

k = 1, ..., t for the t possible crop rotations defined in producing area i on soil group j,



Figure 6. The 35 water supply regions.



Figure 7. The seven major zones.

where:

RC is the cost in dollars per acre for crop activity k on soil
group j in producing area i;

- X is the level of crop activity k on land group j in producing area i;
- LC_{mn} is the cost per unit of livestock activity n in market region m;
 Y_{mn} is the level of livestock activity n in market region m;
 PN_m is the price of nitrogen fertilizer in dollars per pound in
 market region m;
- $^{\rm NB}_{\rm m}$ is the level of the nitrogen-buy activity in market region m; $^{\rm NC}_{\rm r}$ is the price of water in dollars per acre-foot in water supply

region r;

WB_r is the level of the water-buy activity in water supply region r;

WTC_r is the cost per acre-foot of water transferred from water supply

region r;

- WT, is the level of water transfer through natural flow, exports,
 - or interbasin transfers from water supply region r;
- $^{\rm TC}{}_{\rm mps}$ is the cost per unit of transporting commodity p from region

m through transport activity s;

 ${}^{\text{EP}}_{\text{q}}$ is the given export price per unit of commodity q; and EX is the national export level of commodity q.

Restraints

Restraints in the model are defined at either the producing area, consuming area, water supply region, or national level. The restraints control the availability of the resources land, water, fertilizer, and livestock feed; commodity production and utilization for domestic and export; regional location of production in terms of 1969 crop acreage and livestock units; and the attainment of environmental goals represented by restrictions on soil loss or fertilizer application.

Restraints at the producing area level

The only restraint defined at the producing level is the availability of dryland and irrigated cropland. For each producing area, the availability of cropland is defined by land group for dry and irrigated alternatives. There is a maximum of 18 land groups for a given producing area--9 for dryland alternatives and 9 for irrigated alternatives.

In the East, only dryland (rainfed) crop rotation activities are defined, and hence, only dryland restraints are defined. In the 17 western states, restraints for the use of both dryland and irrigated cropland are defined. Crop rotation activities are defined in the model to allow both

39

irrigated and dryland crop rotations on irrigated land. Irrigated crop rotations, however, are defined only on irrigated land. The derivation of the activities by land group and producing area are explained in Nicol and Heady [12].

Restraints at the market region level

Restraints are defined at the market region level to regulate commodity market transactions, regional location of production, and the balance in the nitrogen fertilizer sector.

Commodity transfer restraints. The commodity transfer restraints simulate a market place for the commodities [12]. These commodities include corn grain, sorghum grain, barley, oats, wheat, oilmeals, nonlegume hay, silage, feeders, fed and nonfed beef, pork, and dairy products. The producing areas within the market regions interact directly with the commodity transfer restraints to satisfy the commodity domestic demands and commodity export demands. The commodity transfer restraints in each market region are linked to the adjacent market regions by the commodity transportation activities of the model.

Regional restraints on the location of production. A set of constraints is defined at the market region level to provide for minimum and maximum levels of crop and livestock production within the region. These restraints are incorporated to approximate the immobility of production resulting from farmer preferences, inflexibility of nonendogenous resources, and the time horizon. In addition, these production restraints could be used to simulate farmers' risk aversion as the model assumed complete certainty on both demands and supplies. These minimum and maximum levels are calculated as a multiple of the 1969 level of the crop acreage or livestock production reported in the <u>1969 Census of Agriculture</u> [24]. These restraints are defined for: corn (grain and silage combined),

40

sorghum (grain and silage combined), cotton, soybeans, wheat, legume hay, beef cows, fed beef, hogs, and dairy. For a given crop or livestock commodity, m, these restraints have the general form:

$$\lim_{\substack{i \in I \\ k \in i \\ j}} \sum_{\substack{j \in V \\ j \\ k \in i \\ j}} \sum_{\substack{j \in V \\ j \\ k \in i \\ j}} \sum_{\substack{j \in V \\ j \\ j \\ k \in i \\ j}} \sum_{\substack{j \in V \\ j \\ k \in i \\ j \\ k \\ k \in i \\$$

i = 1,...,29 for the market regions, j = 1,...,10 for the crop or livestock activity, k = 1,..., t for the t producing areas in market region i, and m = 1,..., t for the t restrained commodities in activity j.

where:

L is the minimum number of acres or livestock units of commodity m required in market region i;

X is the level of activity j producing commodity m in producing area k;

is the acreage proportion of commodity m in activity j in pro-Wjkm

ducing area k (for livestock W₁ = 1);

U is the maximum number of acres or livestock units of commodity

m which can be produced in market region i.

For crops, both irrigated and dryland activities can be used to satisfy the production restraints.

41

Nitrogen fertilizer transfer restraints. Another restraint is

defined at the market region level to act as a market place for the supply and demand of nitrogen fertilizer. Nitrogen is obtained as a by-product of livestock activities, from commercially produced fertilizer, and from the fixation process of the legume crops. Nitrogen is used by the endogenous crop rotation activities, in addition to the given amount allocated for exogenous crops [12].

Restraints at the water supply region level

One restraint is defined in each water supply region. This restraint balances the dependable water supply in the region, including interbasin transfers, natural flows and runoff, and the many water uses. Water consumed onsite, water used by exogenous crops and livestock, municipal and industrial uses of water, and water exports are predetermined exogenously to the model. By forcing supply to be greater than or equal to the sum of all endogenous and the above exogenous demands, an adequate water balance is obtained [12].

Restraints at the national levels

Restraints are defined at the national level for cotton and sugar beets. The activities in each producing area are capable of supplying these commodities directly into national market restraints. In other words, no transportation network is defined for these commodities [12].

Environmental restraints

Environmental goals are defined as a maximum allowance of soil loss

42

per acre and in the nitrogen restriction models for maximum allowable nitrogen to be applied per acre. The soil loss limit is applied uniformly across all producing areas at either five or ten tons maximum soil loss per acre depending on the alternative considered. The nitrogen application limits also are applied uniformly across all producing areas, but they vary from crop to crop. The environmental restraints are incorporated by defining a set of crop rotations such that each activity meets the specified limit. Thus, for example, while soil erosion varies between 0 and 40 tons per acre per year, only the crop rotations with an erosion level below the maximum of five tons per acre will be included in the five-ton soil loss alternatives.

Activities

Activities serve as a mechanism whereby production alternatives and commodity utilization and transfer systems are incorporated into the model. Basically, there are four classes of activities in the model: 1) production activities, including crops and livestock; 2) transfer activities, including transportation of commodities between regions and transfer of commodities from one use to another; 3) resource supply activities, including water supplies and nitrogen buying; and 4) demand activities, including commodity exports.

Crop production activities

se

1

7

ing

The crop production variables or activities simulate the production of barley, corn grain, corn silage, cotton, legume and nonlegume hay, oats, sorghum grain, sorghum silage, soybeans, sugar beets, and wheat in rotation; they vary from the model in [12] as aggregated to the smaller number of regions and the yields and costs to 1985. The differentiation of wheat

43

production is assumed to be compensated for by the regional production restraints, and thus only one class of wheat is defined. Yields are calculated based on the price of the agricultural commodities and inputs during the 1972-73 crop year and the higher commodity and fertilizer prices, with the price of fertilizer rising relatively more than commodity prices, resulting in a lower optimum fertilizer level and lower yields than using prices at the levels in [12].

Livestock production activities

The livestock variables or activities simulate the production of meat and dairy products. The activities transform the grains and roughages to satisfy the exogenously determined demands for the livestock products. As in the case of crop activities, the market region livestock activities in this model are aggregations of the livestock activities in [12].

Transfer activities

Commodity transportation activities are defined for all major crops. These activities move the commodities between adjacent consuming regions and over some long-haul routes [12]. Meat transfer activities allow fed beef to be used as part of the supply requirements to meet the nonfed beef demand, thus allowing for a high quality product (fed beef) to satisfy lower quality uses.

Resource supply activities

Water activities have three components: downstream flows, interbasin flows, and water-buy activities. The downstream flows are bounded to a

44

maximum of 75 percent of the available water upstream. The interbasin flows are bounded to a maximum of the water transfer system's capacity. Waterbuying activities are bounded by the maximum available water supply in each water supply region as defined for the model in [12]. Nitrogen-buying activities are not restrained and are defined in each of the market regions with the purchase price reflecting historic regional differences in fertilizer prices.
Commodity export activities

Export activities are defined to control exports of corn grain, sorghum grain, barley, oats, wheat, oilmeals, and cotton. While being defined as national activities, the total amount exported of each of the above commodities (except for cotton) is distributed among the market regions in proportion to the 1969-71 average exports of the commodities by regions. The activities are unbounded except for upper bounds on the export of corn grain (3.5 billion bushels) and cotton (10 million bales) for some of the alternatives analyzed.

Resources and Exogenous Demands Vector

The acreage available by land class in each of the 90 producing regions was determined from the Soil Conservation Service [2]. An adjustment was made for projected changes in exogenous land uses and irrigation developments in 1984 (Table 4).

Item	(1.000 acres)	
Dry cropland	2// 172	
Irrigated cropland	344,172	

Table 4. U.S. total land base acreage in 1985.

n

WS

ch.

15

1-

Total cropland in the model	373,609
Nonrotation hay and pasture dryland	635,491
Nonrotation hay and pasture irrigated	9,504
Total nonrotation hay and pasture	644,995
Exogenous crops	9,369
Total cultivated land	1,027,972

Final commodity regional demands have the population level, per capita demand, and net import level as their major components. They are based on a total 1985 population of 242 million in the conterminous United States. The population is distributed according to the projected 1985 OBERS level D regional distribution [25]. Two levels of per capita demand are being used in the model (Table 5), using similar derivation

methods as the models in [12].

Unit	Consumption at low prices	Consumption at high prices
bushels	1.2010	1.2010
bushels	.0486	.0486
bushels	. 5796	. 5796
bushels	.2187	.2187
bushe1s	2.5838	2.5838
cwt.	0873 ^a	0873 ^a
pounds	16.0	16.0
tons	.1089	.1089
lbs. of carcass weight	99.0	74.7
lbs. of carcass weight	44.6	33.7
lbs. of carcass weight	66.7	65.43
cwt. of milk equivalent	4.83	4.83
lbs. of ready-to-cook mea	t 41.1	40.56
	Unit bushels bushels bushels bushels bushels cwt. pounds tons lbs. of carcass weight lbs. of ready-to-cook mea	Unit Consumption at low prices bushels 1.2010 bushels .0486 bushels .5796 bushels .2187 bushels .2187 bushels .2187 pounds 16.0 tons .1089 lbs. of carcass weight 99.0 lbs. of carcass weight 99.0 lbs. of carcass weight 44.6 lbs. of carcass weight 66.7 cwt. of milk equivalent 4.83 lbs. of ready-to-cook meat 41.1

Table 5. Projected national per capita commodity demands in 1985.

46

Turkeysb	lbs, of	ready-to-cook meat	8.6	7.019
Lamb & mutton ^b	lbs. of	carcass weight	3.1	1.19
Eggsb	eggs	4	250.0	250.0

^aNegative oilmeal consumption reflects an adjustment for the high protein grain by-products provided from the milling of the per capita equivalent of the other grains.

^bExogenous commodities.

Determination of the soil loss levels

Gross soil loss as calculated represents the average annual tons of soil leaving the field. This measurement of soil loss does not represent the amount reaching the stream or bodies of water, as some of the soil particles settle out or are diverted as the runoff passes through grassed areas or onto flatter terrain, thereby changing the water's capacity to transport soil particles. Two separate procedures were used to determine the gross soil loss per acre. For the areas east of the Rocky Mountains, the "Universal 6oil Loss Equation" as described by Wischmeier and Smith [27] and a release from the Soil Conservation Service [15] are used to develop the gross soil loss coefficients.⁹

For those agricultural lands in the mountain valleys and on the West Coast, the data required for the soil loss equation have not been completely developed, and estimates of soil loss for given rotations were determined in conjunction with the SCS questionnaire circulated [12].

Development of the crop yield coefficients

A unique yield is determined for each of the irrigated and dryland crops as a function of the producing area, soil class, crop rotation, conservation practice, and tillage method. The development of the yields began with a series of state production functions capable of projecting yields to the future. The state projection functions are modifications of the Spillman functions developed by Stoecker [20]. For each crop the function is of the form:

⁹The data for this equation are developed from tables given by Wischmeier and Smith [27] and from the regional data given for the soil classes by the Soil Conservation Service of the USDA [12].

$$Y(t) = Y_{o}(t) + A(1 - .8^{X(t)})*PF(t)$$
 (3)

where:

- Y(t) is the estimated average per acre yield of the crop in year t;
 - Y (t) is the estimated average per acre yield on unfertilized land

in year t, developed from a linear trend function;

A is the maximum yield response obtainable from fertilization;

- X(t) is the number of units of fertilizer applied to each acre of the crop in year t;
- PF(t) is the proportion of the acreage of the crop receiving fertilizer in year t, developed from a linear trend of the proportion of the crop acres receiving fertilizer; and

t is years after 1949.

The X(t) defined above represents:

X(t) = PO(t) * (ln (Px/Pc) - ln A - (ln (-ln .8)))/ln .8 (4) where:

In is the natural log of base e;

Px is the weighted price of a unit of fertilizer;

48

Pc is the price of a unit of crop c;

PO(t) is the proportion of the optimum rate of fertilizer applied

in year (t), developed from a linear trend of the proportion

of the optimum rates applied.

The above equation represents an estimate of the optimum application of fertilizer obtained by solving the marginal conditions of a profit maximization system adjusted for the proportion of optimality which farmers are projected to be using. The producing area yield is calculated for each crop based on the above functions, relationships between the states and the producing areas, and the projected levels of fertilizer use. If the rotation in which any crop is defined includes a legume crop, the carry-over nitrogen from these sources is accounted for in predicting the yields. In many instances the legumes, especially alfalfa hay, produced more fertilizer-equivalent nitrogen than would have been applied commercially. When this occurred, the fertilizer-equivalent nitrogen from the legume is used in the yield equation, giving a larger yield than under optimum fertilizer applications.

Fertilizer-use coefficients for the crops

zer

The fertilizer-use coefficients developed from the functions (3) and (4) are independent of the land class, conservation practice, or tillage method. They provide the basis for determining the level of nitrogen supplementation required. The level of commercial fertilization required to meet the projected yields is determined by taking the optimum level of fertilizer use as determined above and subtracting the amount provided by the legume hay and soybeans, if any, in the rotation [12].

The sources of nitrogen are determined endogenously in the nitrogen

49

sector of the model. The nitrogen can be obtained from purchase of commercial nitrogen fertilizer, legume crops, or through the use of livestock wastes. Nonnitrogen fertilizer required to satisfy the calculated optimum application rate is purchased and the costs are included with the production costs to give the exogenous variable costs of production for the crop management system.

A schematic description of the procedures used to develop the yield coefficients and of the adjustment for the nitrogen restrictions is presented in Figure 8. The yield adjustment when nitrogen restrictions are considered is based on a comparison between the amount of nitrogen to be applied to the given crop in a given producing area and the given national limit on the per acre application of nitrogen for the given crop. If the amount of nitrogen to be applied is less than or equal to the specified limit, then no adjustment is made. However, if the amount to be applied (on a per acre basis) is greater than the given limit for the crop, a fertilizer-application ratio reflecting the proportion of the nitrogen to be applied is calculated, and the fertilizer level adjusted by this ratio and a new yield are determined. In addition to the yield adjustment, the new level of nitrogen application is set equal to the nitrogen limit, and the cost of the nonnitrogen fertilizer is adjusted down by multiplying the nonnitrogen fertilizer cost by the fertilizer-application ratio (this assumes phosphorus and potassium are reduced proportionately to nitrogen, Figure 8).

The following sections outline three different applications of the model. The first set, including two alternatives, outlines how different relative commodity prices influence the level of export of each of the commodities. The next set, including three alternatives, analyzes the export capacity of American agriculture under a set of higher commodity prices and three alternative levels of adjustment in regional location of production. The final set, including two alternatives, evaluates the possible impacts of an



0

)

5

1

e

6

of

er-

1

51



Figure 8. Flow chart for yield developments and yield adjustments.

environmental restriction--namely, limitations on the level of nitrogen fertilizer application, on the farm supply cost of food, and the resource utilization to maintain the given export level.



IV. EXPORT RESPONSE TO RELATIVE COMMODITY PRICES

This section summarizes the responsiveness and output capabilities of the agricultural sector to alternative sets of relative export prices. The initial solution of the model reflects agricultural production patterns under 1974-75 target prices [21]. This set of prices (Table 6) is assumed to be the international demand price on a completely elastic demand function for each of the commodities, allowing the model to estimate export levels with no impact of quantity exported on price.

Table 6. U.S. average 1973 commodity prices, export prices under 1974-75 target price alternative (Model 1.1), and adjusted target price alternative (Model 1.2) in 1985.

Commodity	Unit	1973 ^a	Model 1.1 ^b	Model 1.2
Wheat	bushe1	\$4.00	\$2.05	\$2.00
Corn	bushel	2.38	1.38	1.50
Cotton	pound	.45	.38	.28
Barley	bushel	2.13	1.13	1.40
Sorghum	bushel	3.80	1.36	1.70
Oats	bushe1	1.16	.65	.65

Soybeans bushel 5.57 2.79 2.79

^aSource: Statistical Reporting Service [17].

^bWheat, corn, and cotton prices are from 1973 Agricultural Act [21]; barley, sorghum, oats, and soybean prices set to 60 percent of May 1973 parity prices [18].

53

The second alternative in this set adjusts the above prices to encourage a mix of exports near the levels of present exports. Corn, barley, and sorghum prices are increased, cotton and wheat prices are reduced slightly, while oats and soybean prices remain unchanged (Table 6). For both solutions a uniform 10-ton maximum per acre soil loss is allowed. Regional production restrictions are set at a lower limit of 80 percent of 1969 and an upper limit of 200 percent of the 1969 acres for all crops except legume hay. Livestock numbers and legume hay acreage restrictions are set at a lower limit of 80 percent and an upper limit of 300 percent of their 1969 levels. The larger upper limit on livestock allows for more production flexibility reflecting increased per capita demand and population level by 1985.

> Agricultural Production Under 1974-75 Government Target Prices (Model 1.1)

This section outlines the crop production patterns, export levels, land-use patterns, water use, regional production, and the farming prac-

54

tices utilized in maintaining the soil productivity under a set of prices based on the 1974-75 government target prices (Table 6).

Commodity production and utilization

The data in Table 7 indicate the production, domestic consumption, and net export levels for each of the commodities whose production is allocated by the model. During the calendar year 1973, the export of feed grains (corn, sorghum, barley, and oats) amounted to 1.7 billion bushels [6], much higher than the 0.6 billion bushels of feed grains exported under the 1974-75 target prices. Wheat exports under the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1) are 1.3 billion bushels, near the 1973 wheat export level of 1.4 billion bushels [6]. Cotton exports under the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1) are 10.1 million bales compared to the 1973 cotton export of 5.5 million bales [6]. Soybean exports are 0.8 billion bushels compared to the 1973 soybean exports of 0.5 billion bushels [6]. The use of 1974-75 target prices as the equilibrium farm prices encourages the production of wheat, cotton, and soybeans relatively more than feed grains. The results indicate the long-run equilibrium levels of production to which the agricultural sector will tend, given the assumed regional location of production.

Table 7.	Commodity	production	and	utilization	under	1974-75	target	prices
	in 1985 (N	Model 1.1).						

Commodity	modity Unit		Domestic Consumption	Exports	
Corn	million bu.	4,948.1	4,676.4	271.7	
Sorghum	H	353.7	353.7	0.0	
Barley	11	262.0	262.0	0.0	
Oats	11	897.4	586.9	310.5	
Wheat	11	1,954.6	681.0	1,273.6	
Soybeans	11	2,182.3	1,356.5	825.8	
Legume hay	million tons	180.0	180.0	0.0	
Nonlegume hay	11	186.8	186.8	0.0	
Silage		547.8	547.8	0.0	
Cotton	million bales	18.1	8.1	10.0	
Sugar beets	million tons	26.4	26.4	0.0.	
Pork ^a	million cwt.	159.3	161.7	-2.4	
Milk products		1,167.3	1,170.6	-3.3 ^b	
Beefa	<u>0</u>	332.0	348.1	-16.1 ^b	

55

a Carcass weight. b Imports. c Milk equivalents.

6).

ed.

ps

ns

t.

ēS

Land use

Of the 373.6 million acres available for cultivation, 331.3 million acres are used for crop production and 42.3 million acres are idled (Tables 8, 9, and 10). Of the 42.3 million acres of idle land, 11.9 million acres are on land class V-VIII and are idled due to their susceptibility to high soil erosion rates. In the analysis, 75.4 million acres are used for feed grain production compared with 102.3 million acres during the 1972-73 crop year [19]. This is consistent with the reduced competitive position of the feed grains resulting from lower relative prices. The higher livestock production and changes in the ration increase the demand for roughages as reflected in the higher acreage of hays and silages (Tables 8 and 9). Nitrogen carryover from the legume hays also provides an incentive to increase hay acreage.

Four regions account for 36.8 million acres or 87 percent of the total unused land under 1974-75 target price analysis (Model 1.1). The South Atlantic region has 17 percent; the North Central region, 28 percent; the South Central region, 18 percent; and the Great Plains region, 24 percent of

56

the total unused land.

Water use

Of the 240 million acre-feet of water available, 43 percent (103 million acre-feet) is utilized under the target price alternative (Table 11). This indicates that the total water available in the western United States is in excess supply; however, in specific regions water availability is critical. Agricultural uses account for 78 percent of all water diversion in the analysis. 57

Table 8.

n

ti-

ing

-

The

b

otal

е

t of

11).

es

01

Dryland acreages by major zones under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1).

Zone and soil class	Row	Close grown	All hay ^a	Pasture	0ther ^b	Total
		(000	acres)			
United States	178,236	83,525	54,504	635,491	9,044	960,800
1, 11	121,075	36,266	27,345	0	1,654	186,340
IIIE, IVE	23,478	32,582	21,228	0	3,375	80,663
Other III, IV	33,439	14,299	4,706	0	3,781	56,225
V-VIII	244	378	1,225	0	234	2,081
North Atlantic	5,006	1,209	2,431	11,365	227	20.238
1, 11	3,298	651	1,372	0	104	5,425
IIIE, IVE	677	397	743	0	61	1.878
Other III, IV	1,018	158	316	0	35	1.527
V-VIII	13	3	0	0	27	43
South Atlantic *	16,260	1,065	795	36.533	1.555	56,208
1, 11	12,551	772	662	0	260	14 245
IIIE, IVE	1,151	269	5	0	91	1.516
Other III, IV	2,465	20	128	0	1.070	3.683
V-VIII	93	4	0	0	134	231
North Central	91,297	26,029	19,592	53,235	328	190.481
1, 11	70,753	17,582	11,319	0	94	99.748
IIIE, IVE	10,498	4,526	7,564	0	133	22.721
Other III, IV	10,014	3,896	709	0	78	14,697
V-V	32	25	0	0	23	80
South Central	47,090	22,419	11,302	172,234	733	253.778
1, 11	25,393	8,298	2,768	0	392	36.851
IIIE, IVE	6,425	10,849	5,625	0	75	22,974
Other III, IV	15,253	3,135	2,658	0	238	21,284
V-VIII	19	137	251	0	28	435
Great Plains	9,063	22,399	18,112	190,184	5,177	244,935
1, 11	5,830	7,579	10,404	0	670	24,483
IIIE, IVE	1,789	10,508	6,375	0	2,849	21,521
Other III, IV	1,417	4,117	359	0	1,658	7,551
V-VIII	27	195	974	0	0	1,196
Northwest	303	6,398	1,440	48,243	803	57,187
1, 11	64	1,004	738	0	38	1,844
IIIE, IVE	112	4,104	336	0	97	4,649
Other III, IV	82	1,279	366	0	655	2,382
V-VIII	45	11	0	0	13	69
Southwest	9,217	4,006	832	123,697	221	137,973
1, 11	3,186	380	82	0	96	3,744
IIIE, IVE	2,826	1,929	580	0	69	5,404
Other III, IV	3,190	1,694	170	0	47	5,101
V-VIII	15	3	0	0	9	27

^aIncluding other hay and cropland pasture.

b Summer fallow lands and orchards and vineyards.

Table	9.	Irrigated	acreages by	major	zones	under	1974-75	target
		prices in	1985 (Model	1.1).				

Zone and soil class	Row	Close grown	All hay ^a	Pasture	Other ^b	Total
		(000) acres)			
United States	12,559	4,057	7,851	9,503	1,600	35,570
1, 11	8,759	1,780	4,382	0	934	15,855
IIIE, IVE	1,646	543	964	0	210	3,363
Other III, IV	2,131	1,679	2,405	0	431	6,646
V-VIII	23	55	100	0	25	203
North Atlantic	0	0	0	0	0	0
1, 11	0	0	0	0	0	0
IIIE, IVE	0	0	0	0	0	0
Other III, IV	0	0	0	0	0	0
V-VIII	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Atlantic	0	0	0	0	0	0
1, 11	0	0	0	0	0	0
IIIE, IVE	0	0	0	0	0	0
Other III, IV	0	0	0	0	0	0
V-VIII	0	0	0	0	0	0
North Central	11	0	467	0	0	478
1, 11	11	0	347	0	0	358
TITE, IVE	0	0	4	0	0	4
Other III, IV	0	0	116	0	0	116
V-VIII	0	0	0	0	0	0
outh Central	2,398	625	88	198	87	3,396
1, 11	1,346	246	86	0	86	1,764
TITE, IVE	333	10	0	0	1	344
Other III, IV	/19	368	2	0	0	1,089
V-V111	0	1	0	0	0	1
Great Plains	4,641	1,154	2,760	5,394	17	13,966
1, 111	3,458	/68	2,076	0	5	6,307
TITE, IVE	/69	1/9	267	0	8	1,223
Other III, IV	406	204	410	0	3	1,023
V-V111	1 056	3	2 100	0	1	19
Northwest	1,856	1,709	3,129	2,366	679	9,739
1, 11	1,138	636	1,399	0	394	3,567
TITE, IVE	369	264	514	0	108	1,255
Uther III, IV	337	/58	1,123	0	164	2,382
V-V111	12	51	93	0	13	169
Southwest	3,653	569	1,407	1,545	817	7,991
1, 11	2,806	130	474	0	449	3,859
Other III	1/5	90	179	0	93	537
Uther III, IV	669	349	754	0	264	2,036
V-VIII	3	0	0	0	11	14

1

- 2 5 -

l

N

5

N

5

1

N

^aIncluding other hay and cropland pasture.

5

^bSummer fallow lands and orchards and vineyards.

Zone and	Avail	able land ^a	L	Jnused crop	land
soil class	Dry	Irrig.	Dry	Irrig.	Total
La faiter a sta		(00	0 acres)		
United States	344,172	29,437	40.527	1,820	42.347
1, 11	175,594	18,107	958	758	1.716
IIIE, IVE	93,982	4,768	17.361	321	17.682
Other III, IV	61,392	6,256	10,481	594	11.075
V-VIII	13,204	306	11,727	147	11.874
North Atlantic	10,268	0	2,396	0	2.396
1, 11	4,838	0	0	0	0
IIIE, IVE	2,743	0	1,039	0	1.039
Other III, IV	2,140	0	810	0	810
V-VIII	547	0	547	0	547
South Atlantic	• 22,477	0	7,313	0	7,313
1, 11	12,724	0	370	0	370
IIIE, IVE	4,196	0	3,071	0	3.071
Other III, IV	4,534	0	2,849	0	2.849
V-VIII	1,023	0	1,023	0	1,023
North Central	144,470	481	11,631	3	11,634
1, 11	97,001	358	304	0	304
IIIE, IVE	26,150	4	3,869	0	3,869
Other III, IV	17,522	119	3,661	3	3,664
V-VIII	3,797	0	3,797	0	3,797
South Central	85,427	3,734	7,154	563	7,717
1, 11	35,147	2,458	32	463	495
IIIE, IVE	24,932	388	2,466	4	2,470
Other III, IV	22,366	879	2,046	91	2,137
V-VIII	2,982	9	2,610	5	2,615
Great Plains	61,651	9,795	9,253	840	10,093
1, 11	23,876	6,028	0	0	0
IIIE, IVE	26,145	1,989	5,784	280	6,064
Other III, IV	7,717	1,688	661	483	1,144
V-VIII	3,913	90	2,808	77	2,885
Northwest	9,428	5,884	1,602	10	1,612

Table 10. Cropland utilization by major zones under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1).

1,538	2,781	0	0	0
5,188	1,066	950	8	958
2,328	1,893	278	0	278
374	144	374	2	376
10,451	9,543	1,178	404	1,582
470	6,482	252	295	547
4,628	1,321	182	29	211
4,785	1,677	176 .	17	193
568	63	568	63	631
	1,538 5,188 2,328 374 10,451 470 4,628 4,785 568	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$

^aIncludes only cropland available for endogenous crops.

		P	rojected 1985		
River basin	Total 1970 ^a	Agriculture	Municipal and Industrial ^b	0ther ^c	Total
		(00)	0 acre-feet per	year)	
		Withdrawa	als		
Western Basins Missouri ArkWhite-Red Texas-Gulf Rio Grande U. Colorado L. Colorado Great Basin ColN. Pacific CalS. Pacific	182,896 26,880 13,440 23,520 7,056 9,072 8,064 7,504 33,600 53,760	94,307 15,896 4,792 5,536 4,850 2,952 6,039 2,950 18,201 33,091	41,962 5,174 8,486 13,164 1,084 690 1,013 742 5,109 6,500	6,248 1,734 0 0 189 1,937 1,177 0 1,211	142,517 22,804 13,278 18,700 5,934 3,831 8,989 4,869 23,310 40,802
		Consumptiv	/e use		
Western Basins Missouri ArkWhite-Red Texas-Gulf Rio Grande U. Colorado L. Colorado Great Basin ColN. Pacific CalS. Pacific	82,432 13,440 7,616 6,944 3,696 4,592 5,600 3,584 12,320 24,640	80,336 14,029 4,543 4,536 3,612 2,356 5,382 2,385 15,845 27,648	17,382 990 1,691 6,845 452 286 413 285 907 5,513	5,550 1,734 0 0 141 1,746 849 0 1,080	103,268 16,753 6,234 11,381 4,064 2,783 7,541 3,519 16,752 34,241

Table 11. Withdrawals and consumptive use of water in the western river basins under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1).

^aSource: Marry and Reevers [10, Table 17].

^bIncludes rural domestic, municipal, self-supplied industrial, recreation, mining, and thermal electric power.

^cIncludes onsite uses and water exports out of the western basins.

The value of water as determined from the return to the water restraint varies greatly across the western United States. The average marginal value product of water is \$12.60 per acre-foot, with a range from \$1.50 per acre-foot to \$88.33 per acre-foot.

Regional location of production

Initially the model's crop location patterns are compared with the crop location using the Census of Agriculture as the base [24]. Then, discussion of the commodity prices is given relating the cost (supply price) and the value imputed to the regional location of production restraints. The value of the regional flexibility restraints can be viewed as a measure of the inefficiency of production resulting from the required regional location of production. The regional production restraint prices are greater than zero for those regions where the model, in order to minimize total cost, would indicate a desire to shift production to another region, or to increase production above the maximum allowed.

Figures 9 and 10 indicate the regional distribution of row crops under Model 1.1 and in 1969, respectively. Under Model 1.1 assumptions, 180.5 million acres are devoted to row crops (Figure 9), compared to 127.1

61

million acres in 1969 (Figure 10) [24]. The increase in row crop acres is a result of the higher domestic consumption and higher exports in 1985 and concentrates in or adjacent to the Corn Belt.

Figures 11 and 12 indicate the distribution of close-grown crops under Model 1.1 and in 1969, respectively. An additional 11.3 million acres are utilized for production of the close-grown crops above the 1969 level



Figure 9. Location of dryland and irrigated row crops under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1).



Figure 10. Location of endogenous row crops in 1969. ⁱSource: <u>Census of Agriculture 1969</u> [24].



Figure 11. Location of endogenous dryland and irrigated close-grown crops under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1).

get



63

Figure 12. Location of endogenous close-grown crops in 1969.

Source: Census of Agriculture 1969 [24].

of 70.6 million acres. Wheat acreage increases by 16.8 million acres from 45.4 million in 1969, with most of the increase in the Central Plains area of the nation.

Figures 13 and 14 indicate the location of hay crops under Model 1.1 and in 1969, respectively. No major shift in location of hay occurs under Model 1.1. The total acres of hay increase by 16.2 million acres from 46.2 million in 1969, due to the higher than 1969 demand for the livestock products. The composition of the hay acreage shifts in response to the nitrogen carryover to include 83 percent legume hay compared with only 48 percent legume hay in 1969.

Regional impacts on commodity prices

The prices of the commodities are determined by both demand or market influences and by the regional location of production influences (Table 12). The regional location of production influences are expressed in terms of location prices. Location prices represent the values of the commodities attributed to a maximum incorporation of the commodities resulting from limitations on the availability of nonendogenous resources and the lower level of production, representing inefficiencies of production as farmers diversify and try to spread risk at the expense of reduced income.¹⁰ Factors affecting the location of production include: farmers' desires to diversify, seasonal labor allocation, diversification for risk purposes, rotations which are not solely of one crop but which contribute to land management, incomplete

64

D

II

F:

¹⁰ The prices are weighted prices on the regional location of production restraints defined for each of the market regions.



Figure 13. Location of endogenous dryland and irrigated hay under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1).



Arra

1 mins

2



1S

1

er

:k

8

cet.

12).

2

Figure 14. Location of endogenous hay in 1969.

Source: Census of Agriculture 1969 [24].

information as to the expected prices of the commodities, and other

miscellaneous reasons.

Table 12. U.S. average commodity supply, location, and total prices under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1).

Commodity	Unit	Supply price	Location price	Total price
			(Dollars per unit)
Corn	(Bu.)	1.32	0.09	1.40
Sorghum	(Bu.)	1.50	0.39	1 89
Barley	(Bu.)	1.32	0.00	1 32
Oats	(Bu.)	0.65	0.00	0.65
Wheat	(Bu.)	1.63	0.27	1 00
Soybeans	(Bu.)	2.72	0.12	2.84
Legume hay	(Ton)	27.73	2.96	30.69
Nonlegume hay	(Ton)	32.56	0.00	32 56
Silage	(Ton)	10.27	0.92	11 10
Cotton	(Lb.)	0.33	0.06	0.20
Porka	(CWT)	39.95	0.16	40.11
Milk ^b	(CWT)	4.86	0.41	5 27
Beef	(CWT)	68.45	0.63	69.08

^aCarcass weight equivalent.

^bMilk equivalent.

The national average prices are not the same as the export prices (Table 6) due to transportation costs between the location of production and the exporting market regions where the export prices are obtained. In some regions, because of the small number of acres of a given crop, no production limit has been set and no location price is determined. In the North Atlantic region, 33 percent of the wheat price is attributed to location price. In the South Atlantic region, 40 percent of sorghum price is attributed to location price. The largest location price for corn appears

3

1

ιĒ

1

in the South Central, region, where 33 percent of the corn price is attributed to location price. In livestock production, pork appears to have the greatest dislocation in the South Central region. On the other hand, beef production seems to be best located in the Northwest, where only one half of one percent of the total price is attributed to location price.

Soil loss and farming practices

T

-

-

8

3-

8

Soil erosion in this analysis refers to the gross field loss of soil on the cultivated lands allocated endogenously by the model and reflects a 10-ton per acre maximum soil loss restriction. The average U.S. soil loss per acre is 5.04 tons per year (Table 13). Regionally, the soil loss varies from 2.2 tons per acre in the Northwest to more than 6 tons per acre in the South Atlantic and South Central regions of the country. Under Model 1.1, the total national soil loss from the production of the endogenous crops amounts to more than 1.6 billion tons per year. Of the total soil erosion, 40 percent (.67 billion tons) is produced in the North Central region and 34 percent (.55 billion tons) is produced in the South Central region. The South Atlantic region, which has one of the highest per acre soil loss levels, contributes only 6 percent to the total soil loss because

67

of its relatively small share of the total agricultural product and the

farming practices incorporated.

Nationally, 65 percent of the cultivated lands are farmed using conventional tillage-straight row practices (Table 14). All conventional tillage practices taken together account for 85 percent of the cultivated

	Conventional		tillage	Red	Reduced tillage		
Zone and soil class	Str. row	Contour only	S. crop terrace	Str. row	Contour only	S. crop terrace	Aver- age
and the second second			(ton/	acre)			1111
United States	4.43	7.35	5.14	5.68	8.36	7.49	5 04
1, 11	4.62	7.60	5.41	5.34	6.43	0.00	5 14
IIIE, IVE	4.20	6.44	4.79	6.78	9.25	7.51	5 13
Other III, IV	4.12	6.44	5.29	6.41*	7.02	6.53	4 65
V-VIII	2.55	7.53	0.00	0.00	0 00	0.00	3 50
North Atlantic	3.66	0.00	0.00	5.20	0.00	4 97	4 83
1, 11	2.98	0.00	0.00	5.09	0.00	0.00	4 50
IIIE, IVE	6.75	0.00	0.00	7.52	0.00	4 97	6.61
Other III, IV	0.95	0.00	0.00	3.97	0.00	0.00	3 75
V-VIII	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
South Atlantic	6.27	7.87	5.53	6.52	7.08	6.03	6 56
1, 11	6.22	7.87	5.53	5.71	7.08	0.00	6 51
IIIE, IVE	7.04	7.86	0.00	0.00	0.00	6.03	6 58
Other III, IV	7.27	0.00	0.00	6.82	0.00	0.00	6 87
V-VIII	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.07
North Central	4.63	7.68	4 64	5 54	6.96	8 21	0.00 E 16
1, 11	4.55	7 77	6.45	5 34	5.46	0.21	5.10
IIIE, IVE	4.95	6.96	3 01	6 51	7 94	8 30	5.09 E 62
Other III, IV	4.78	7.91	0.00	4 56	0.00	5 54	2.03
V-VIII	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	4.90
South Central	6.97	7.15	5.27	6.56	9.26	7 98	6.60
1, 11	7.63	7.55	4.86	5 50	6 19	7.90	7 16
IIIE, IVE	6.34	6.12	5.46	9 35	9.61	7 00	6.85
Other III, IV	5.78	5.16	5 29	9.05	7 02	7.33	E 68
V-VIII	2.51	7.53	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	5.00
Great Plains	2.80	3.07	4 88	0.00	0.00	0.00	2.01
1.11	2.95	3.07	2 82	0.00	0.00	0.00	2.05
LIIE, IVE	2.59	0.00	5.06	0.00	0.00	0.00	2.90
Other III, IV	2.68	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	2.68
V-VIII	2.88	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	2.00
Vorthwest	2.16	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	2.00
1.11	1.59	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	1.50
LILE, IVE	3.24	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	2 24
Other III. IV	1.41	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	1.41
V-VIII	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Southwest	4.62	5.45	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	1.65
1.11	4.58	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	4.05
LILE, IVE	4.56	5.45	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	4.50
Other III IV	4.72	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	4.05
V VIII	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	4.72

Table 13. Per acre erosion under conservation practices by major zones under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1).^a

Gr

No

So

So So

T

Zo

50

Ur

No

So

No

^aFor all endogenous crops including rotation hay.

	Con	ventional	tillage	Rec	luced till.	age
Zone and	Str.	Contour	S. crop	Str.	Contour	S. Crop
soil class	row	only	terrace	row	only	terrace
Charges in the second in	1		(000 acre)		
United States	215,547	29,123	36,017	37.697	7,779	5.095
1, 11	129,259	22,745	10,042	27,683	2.254	0
IIIE, IVE	47,389	4,342	13,582	5.525	5.265	4,965
Other III, IV	37,576	1,725	12,394	4,490	261	130
V-VIII	1,323	312	0	0	0	0
North Atlantic	1,848	0	0	5.533	0	491
1, 11	1,365	0	0	3.473	0	0
IIIE, IVE	385	0	0	828	0	491
Other III, IV	. 97	0	0	1.233	0	0
V-VIII	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Atlantic	3,553	3.681	3.843	2.077	1.222	787
1, 11	3.376	3.349	3.843	563	1,222	,0,
IIIE, IVE	6	332	0	0	0	787
Other III, IV	171	0	0	1.514	0	0
V-VIII	0	0	0	0	0	0
North Central	86,917	11.889	5.312	25.060	1.902	2 236
1, 11	64.040	9.659	2,508	20,098	749	0
IIIE, IVE	10,268	1.426	2.804	4,470	1.153	2 164
Other III, IV	12,609	804	0	491	0	73
V-VIII	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Central	36.989	12,490	20,703	5.027	4.655	1.580
1, 11	20,838	9,250	3,192	3.549	283	0
IIIE, IVE	9,863	2,007	5,118	227	4.112	1 523
Other III, IV	6,225	920	12.394	1.252	261	57
V-VIII	63	312	0	0	0	0
Great Plains	54,706	486	6,159	0	0	Ő
1, 11	28,918	486	499	0	0	0
IIIE, IVE	16,409	0	5,660	0	0	0
Other III, IV	8,262	0	0	0	0	0

Table 14. Acreages under conservation practices by major zones under 1974-75 target prices in 1985 (Model 1.1).^a

V-V	1,118	0	0	0	0	0
Northwest	13,700	0	0	0	0	0
1, 11	4,318	0	0	0	0	0
IIIE, IVE	5,297	0	0	0	0	0
Other III, IV	3,943	0	0	0	0	0
V-VIII	142	0	0	0	0	0
Southwest	17,835	577	0	0	0	0
1, 11	6,405	0	0	0	0	0
IIIE, IVE	5,161	577	0	0	0	0
Other III, IV	6,269	0	0	0	0	0
V-VIII	0	0	0	0	0	0

^aFor all endogenous crops including rotation hay.

land farmed. Nationwide, 15 percent of the cultivated land is under some form of reduced tillage, concentrating in those areas where a high rate of soil loss takes place. For example, 27 percent of the cultivated acres in the South Atlantic region incorporate reduced tillage in the farming practices as do 22 percent of the cultivated acres in the North Central region.

Agricultural Production Under Adjusted Target Prices (Model 1.2)

This model indicates the production and export response obtainable as the relative commodity prices are altered. In determining the set of altered relative prices, it was desired to obtain an export mix approximating current experiences. Thus, lower prices for cotton and wheat were selected, in conjunction with higher prices for feed grains (Table 6). All other model assumptions remain consistent with the previous analysis (Model 1.1).

Commodity production and utilization

Table 15 indicates the production, domestic consumption, and export

levels determined in Model 1.2. The total export of the feed grains reaches 1.4 billion bushels, of which 1.0 billion bushels are corn grain. This compares with the 1973 feed grain exports totaling 1.7 billion bushels, of which 1.3 billion bushels were corn grain [6]. Wheat exports under Model 1.2 assumptions total 1.1 billion bushels compared to 1.4 billion bushels in 1973 [6]. Under Model 1.2 price assumptions, for each bushel of wheat

Commodity	Unit	Production	Domestic consumption	Exports
Corn	million bu.	5,541.4	4,501.7	1,039.7
Sorghum		454.9	307.4	147.5
Barley	-11	429.7	429.7	0.0
Oats	0	769.6	531.4	238.2
Wheat	11	1,817.9	711.7	1,106.2
Soybeans	11	2,299.2	1,394.3	904.9
Legume hay	million tons	176.8	176.8	0.0
Nonlegume hay	11	187.6	187.6	0.0
Silage		564.0	564.0	0.0
Cotton	million bales	12.1	8.0	4.1
Sugar beets	million tons	26.4	26.4	0.0
Porka	million cwt.	159.3	161.7	-2.4 ^b
Milk products ^C	million cwt.	1,167.3	1,170.6	-3.3 ^b
Beef ^a	million cwt.	332.0	348.1	-16.1 ^b

Commodity production and utilization under Table 15. adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2).

a Carcass weight.

^bImports.

^cMilk equivalent.

71

lel

exported, 1.29 bushels of feed grains are exported. This is close to the 1972-73 ratio of feed grains to wheat exports of 1.23. Sorghum, which is not exported under the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1), is exported at the level of 147.5 million bushels under Model 1.2 assumptions. Wheat exports are reduced by 14 percent and cotton exports, which are more than 10 million bales under Model 1.1, reach only 4.1 million bales.

Land use

The data in Tables 16, 17, and 18 indicate the dryland, irrigated, and overall land-use patterns under Model 1.2 assumptions. Total land use increases 6 million acres over the level of Model 1.1. The increase in dryland use accounted for 5.9 million acres of this total. The acreage shifts within the crop-use categories are consistent with the production patterns (Table 15), i.e., corn acreage increases and cotton decreases. Regionally, the increase in land utilization takes place mostly in the North Central (up 2.4 million acres) and the South Central (up 2.9 million acres) regions. Comparing Model 1.2 land use to the 1973 crop year indicates a closer balance in the pattern of production than the distribution obtained under Model 1.1 (Table 19).

U

N

Si

N

S

0

No

Si

Model 1.2 serves as a base model for the remainder of the alternatives in the study. Its results, especially in terms of exports and land use, tend to be more closely related to the current U.S. patterns. Some of the differences can be explained in terms of long-run changes which will take place if U.S. agriculture is exposed to higher prices. For example,

the increased production of silage (corn and sorghum) from 15.0 million acres in 1973 [19] to 45.3 million acres in Model 1.2 (Table 19), reflects the fact that one acre of silage can produce up to 50 percent more beef than an acre of grain. Estimates indicate that an acre of corn fed as grain can produce about 800 pounds of beef, while the same acre of corn fed as silage can produce 1,200 pounds of beef.¹¹

11

Interview given to <u>The Des Moines Register and Tribune</u> by Dr. S.A. Ewing, Head, Department of Animal Science, Iowa State University, Ames, Iowa, July 20, 1974.

Та	b1	e	16	1
	her ohe	-		

se

л

lon

ives

ť

ts.

rain

. Iowa,

Dryland	acreages	by majo	r zones	under	adjusted	target	
prices :	in 1985 (N	fodel 1.	2),		-	^o	

Zone and soil class	Row	Close grown	All hay	Pasture	0ther ^b	Total
		(00)	0 acres)			
United States	186,409	81,534	54,836	635,491	8,462	966.732
1, 11	126,064	33,059	26,260	0	1,670	187.053
IIIE, IVE	26,549	32,193	21,890	• 0	3,511	84,143
Other III, IV	33,552	15,904	5,461	0	3.047	57.964
V-VIII	244	378	1,225	0	234	2.081
North Atlantic	5,288	1,185	2,430	11,365	227	20.499
1, 11	3,384	612	1,325	0	104	5.429
IIIE, IVE	674	394	734	0	61	1.863
Other III, IV	1,217	176	371	0	35	1.790
V-VIII	13	3	0	0	27	43
South Atlantic	. 16,452	1.065	972	36.533	1 555	56 577
1, 11	12,694	772	752	0	260	14 478
IIIE, IVE	1,200	269	92	0	91	1 652
Other III, IV	2.465	20	128	õ	1 070	3 683
V-VIII	93	4	- 0	ő	134	231
North Central	96,953	23,447	18 890	53 235	328	192 853
1, 11	75.463	14 638	9 675	0,200	920	99,055
IIIE, IVE	11.042	4,526	8,262	0	133	23,070
Other III, IV	10,416	4 258	953	0	78	15 705
V-VIII	32	25	0	0	23	15,705
South Central	49 362	21 758	11 558	172 234	723	255 6h5
1.11	25 643	8 3 2 8	2 827	172,234	302	27,045
LLIE, IVE	8 736	9 795	5 463	0	75	2/, 190
Other III. IV	14 964	3 498	3 017	0	238	24,009
V-VIII	19	137	251	0	230	21,11/
Great Plains	9 257	23 306	18 662	190 184	4 535	2/15 0/1
1. 11	5 953	7,065	10,801	1,00,104	667	245,544
ILLE, IVE	1 932	11 126	6 501	0	2 986	29,400
Other III IV	1 345	4 920	386	0	2,900	7 522
V-V111	27	195	974	0	002	1,000
Northwest	303	6 416	1 510	118 2/12	803	1,190
1 11	64	945	708	40,245	28	1 945
ILLE IVE	112	4 164	276	0	30	1,045
Other III IV	82	1 296	136	0	97 6EE	4,049
V-V111	45	1,290	430	0	12	2,469
Southwest	8 794	4 357	814	123 607	291	127 042
L D	2 862	699	82	123,097	115	137,943
LILE IVE	2,003	1 919	562	0	69	5,759
Other III IV	3,062	1 776	170	0	80	5,402
V-VIII	5,005	,/)0	170	0	09	5,058
V-VIII	15	5	0	0	9	2/

^aIncluding other hay and cropland pasture.

b Summer fallow lands and orchards and vineyards.

Zone and	Paul	Close	Alla	D	b.	terr (
5011 Class	KOW	grown	hay	Pasture	Other	Total
		(0)	00 acres)			
United States	12,010	4,920	7.626	9 503	1 600	35 650
1.11	8,438	1.710	4 738	5,505	1,000	15,059
LILE, IVE	1,624	598	1 091	0	210	15,020
Other III IV	1,925	2 557	1 697	0	210	3,523
V-VIII	22	-,557	100	0	431	6,610
North Atlantic	25	22	100	0	25	203
	0	0	0	0	0	0
1115 115	0	0	0	0	0	0
Othor III IV	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Atlantic	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Atlantic	0	0	0	0	0	0
1, 11	0	0	0	0	0	0
Other III IV	0	0	0	0	0	0
Uther III, IV	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	0	0	0	0	0
North Central	0	0	478	0	0	478
1, 11	0	0	358	0	0	358
TITE, TVE	0	0	4	0	0	4
Other III, IV	0	0	116	0	0	116
V-VIII	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Central	2,214	605	188	198	87	3,292
1, 11	1,288	255	134	0	86	1.763
IIIE, IVE	255	36	52	0	1	344
Other III, IV	671	313	2	0	0	986
V-VIII	0	1	0	0	0	1
Great Plains	5,142	1,135	2,501	5.394	17	14 189
1, 11	3,902	702	1,696	0	5	6 305
IIIE, IVE	826	204	342	0	á	1 380
Other III, IV	406	226	456	0	3	1,001
V-VIII	8	3	7	0	1	1,091
Northwest	1,854	1.713	3,129	2 366	679	0 7/1
1, 11	1,139	636	1,399	2,500	30/1	2 568
IIIE, IVE	366	268	514	0	108	2,500
Other III, IV	337	758	1 123	0	164	1,250
V-VIII	12	51	93	0	104	2,302
Southwest	2,800	1.467	1 330	1 545	817	7 050
1, 11	2,109	117	1 151	1,545	1110	7,959
IIIE, IVE	177	90	179	0	449	5,020
Other III. IV	511	1 260	1/5	0	25	2 025
V-VIII	3	0	0	0	264	2,035
	2	0	0	0	11	14

Irrigated acreages by major zones under adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2). Table 17.

Zo la

Un

No

So

No

Sol

Gre

Nor

Sou

^aIncluding other hay and cropland pasture.

^bSummer fallow lands and orchards and vineyards.

Zone and	Avail	able land ^a	L	Inused crop	land
land class	Dry	Irrig.	Dry	Irrig.	Total
	A-122110-0-024	(000	acres)		
United States	344,172	29,437	34,981	1.355	36 336
1, 11	175,594	18,107	605	437	1,042
IIIE, IVE	93,982	4.768	13.879	166	14,045
Other III, IV	61,392	6.256	8,770	605	9 275
V-VIII	13,204	306	11.727	147	11 874
North Atlantic	10.268	0	2 141	0	2 1/1
1, 11	4.838	0	2,111	0	2,171
ILIE, IVE	2.743	0	1 054	0	1 054
Other III. IV	2,140	õ	540	0	1,054
V-VIII	547	0	540	0	540
South Atlantic	22 477	0	6 9/1	0	54/
L. II	12 724	0	127	0	6,944
LILE IVE	4 196	0	2 025	0	13/
Other III IV	4 534	0	2,935	0	2,935
V-V111	1 022	0	2,049	0	2,849
North Central	1/1/ 1/70	1.01	1,023	0	1,023
	07,001	401	9,259	3	9,262
	97,001	350	182	0	182
Other III IV	20,150	4	2,628	0	2,628
V VIII	17,522	119	2,652	3	2,655
V-VIII	3,/9/	0	3,797	0	3,797
south central	05,42/	3,/34	5,726	228	5,954
1, 11	35,14/	2,458	32	124	156
THE, IVE	24,932	388	1,371	4	1,375
Uther III, IV	22,366	879	1,713	95	1,808
V-VIII	2,982	9	2,610	5	2,615
Great Plains	61,651	9,795	8,179	685	8,864
1, 11	23,876	6,028	0	0	0
ITTE, IVE	26,145	1,989	4,759	125	4,884
Other III, IV	7,717	1,688	612	483	1,095
V-VIII	3,913	90	2,808	77	2,885
Northwest	9,428	5,884	1,516	10	1,526
,	1,538	2,781	0	0	0
IIIE, IVE	5,188	1,066	950	8	958
Other III, IV	2,328	1,893	192	0	192
V-VIII	374	1 44	374	2	376
Southwest	10,451	9,543	1,216	429	1,645
1, 11	470	6,482	254	313	567
IIIE, IVE	4,628	1,321	182	29	211
Other III, IV	4,785	1,677	212	24	236
V-VIII	568	63	568	63	631

Table 18. Cropland utilization by major zones under adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2).

5

a Includes only cropland available for endogenous crops.

a 1	djusted target prices (Mod 973.	lel 1.2) in 1985, comp	pared with
Crop	Model 1.1	Model 1.2	1973 ^a
		(million acres)	
Corn grain	48.3	53.3	61.8
Soybeans	63.8	67.1	56.4
Wheat	62.2	59.5	53.9
Hay crops	62.3	62.5	62.2
Sorghum grai	n 7.5	9.9	15.9
Cotton	15.1	11.4	12.0
Barley	5.4	9.1	10.5
Oats	14.3	12.2	14.1
Silage	44.6	45.3	15.0

Table 19. Acres of major crops under 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1),

^aSource: Statistical Reporting Service [19].

Under Model 1.2, 68 percent of the row crops are grown on land classes I and II. This compares with 63 percent in 1967 [2]. About 80 percent of the close-grown crops are divided between land classes I through IV compared with 96 percent in 1967 [2]. Land classes I-IV also account for 88 percent

of all the hay crops under Model 2.1 and 84 percent in 1967 [2]. Total unused cropland under Model 1.2 is 36.3 million acres (Table 18), with a lower concentration of idled cropland in the central regions as compared to Model 1.1.

Regional location of production

The location of production of the row crops, close-grown crops, and hay crops under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) shows only minor changes from the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1). Because of the large increase in corn acres, the Corn Belt states indicate a larger acreage of row crops. The reduction in cotton acreage is offset by local shifts to soybeans in the South Central and Southeast regions of the country. The close-grown crops concentrate in the Central Plains area.

Regional impacts on commodity prices

ISSES

of

ared

ent

At a national level, Model 1.2 indicates slightly higher prices than Model 1.1 (Tables 20 and 12, respectively). Corn price increases five cents per bushel, and sorghum price increases four cents per bushel. However, cotton and soybean prices both decrease. The location price for all grain crops, except wheat, are reduced. This indicates that under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2), the production restraints are more consistent with the optimal location of production than under the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1). The cotton and wheat location prices increased as their relative land use in marginal areas is challenged by the now relatively higher priced feed grains.

One measure of the location efficiency of production¹² is to compare the location price of a commodity to the total price of the commodity. Under Model 1.2, location price increases the national price of the com-

77

modities as follows: corn, 4 percent; sorghum, 17 percent; wheat, 15 percent; soybeans, 2 percent; legume hay, 11 percent; and beef, 1 percent (Table 20). It will be shown later that, in general, as the level of production increases to satisfy higher exports, the proportion of location price to the total price of the commodity tends to decrease.

¹²Inefficiency in regional location of production can be attributed to farmers risk aversion, incomplete information, and slow adoption of new crop varieties and production methods.

Commodity	Unit	Supply price	Location price	Total price			
			(Dollars per unit)				
Corn	(Bu.)	1.39	0.06	1.45			
Sorghum	(Bu.)	1.61	0.32	1.93			
Barley	(Bu.)	1.28	0.00	1.28			
Oats	(Bu.)	0.68	0.00	0.68			
Wheat	(Bu.)	1.64	0.28	1 92			
Soybeans	(Bu.)	2.65	0.05	2 70			
Legume hay	(Ton)	28.69	3.49	32 18			
Nonlegume hay	(Ton)	34.43	0.00	34 43			
Silage	(Ton)	10.47	0.83	11 30			
Cotton	(Lb.)	0.28	0.07	0.35			
Pork	(CWT)	41.41	0.17	41 59			
Milk	(CWT)	5.01	0.44	5 46			
Beef ^a	(CWT)	70.52	0.72	71.23			

Table 20. U.S. average commodity supply, location, and total prices under adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2).

^aCarcass weight equivalent.

^bMilk equivalent.

Feed consumed by livestock

The data in Tables 21 and 22 indicate the quantity of feed consumed by livestock class and the proportion of the total value represented by each feed, respectively. In general, only minor differences exist between the rations fed under the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1) and the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2). Thus, despite changes in the relative prices of the feed grains and roughages, the changes are not large enough to greatly shift the ration composition for the livestock classes.

79		
79		-
14		\sim
1 4		
	100.00	~

Table	21.	Feed consumption by class of	livestock	in the United
		States under adjusted target	prices in	1985 (Model 1.2).

Class	Feed grains ^a	High protein supplements ^b	Wheat	Forages ^C
-	(000 bu.)	(000 cwt.)	(000 bu.)	(000 tons)
Beef cows	143,887	124,477	0	319,938
Beef feeding	335,723	112,097	0	105,925
Dairy	1,415,820	58,806	32,501	37,337
Hogs	1,905,059	157,631	9,579	2,087
All other	1,281,574	260,601	43,398	101,576
Total	5,082,063	713,612	85,478	566,863

^aCorn equivalent.

n

ted

^bIncludes soybean and cottonseed oilmeals and high protein grain supplements. Does not include animal protein supplements.

^CIncludes legume hay, nonlegume hay, and pasture, and corn and sorghum silages in hay-equivalent tons.

d Includes sheep and lambs, broilers, turkeys, eggs, and other livestock.

Policy Implications

Since the early 1930s agricultural policy in the United States has been based on production control in terms of set-aside acres and other

programs to regulate production. In most of these years, in addition to production control, different programs were established to guarantee a reasonable return to the farmer. Most of the price control programs were based on the concept of a parity price system. The Agricultural Act of 1973 is the most recent attempt by the U.S. Congress to depart from the

Class	Feed grains ^a	High protein supplements ^b	Wheat	Forages ^c	Total
		(Percent o	distributi	on)	- Andrews
Beef cows	0.68	2.32	0.00	34.71	37 71
Beef feeding	1.59	2.09	0.00	11.80	15 48
Dairy	6.69	1.10	0.20	4.03	12.02
Hogs	9.00	2.94	0.06	0.22	12.22
All others d	6.06	4.85	0.27	11.39	22.57
Total	24.02	13.29	0.53	62.15	100.00

Table 22. Feed consumption by class of livestock in the United States under adjusted target prices in 1985 (Model 1.2).

^aCorn equivalent.

^b Includes soybean and cottonseed oilmeals and high protein grain supplements. Does not include animal protein supplements.

^CIncludes legume hay, nonlegume hay, and pasture, and corn and sorghum silages in hay-equivalent tons.

d Includes sheep and lambs, broilers, turkeys, eggs, and other livestock.

parity price concept [21]. Specifically, the act reads, "To extend and amend the Agricultural Act of 1970 for the purpose of assuring consumers of plentiful supplies of food and fiber at reasonable prices" [21, p. 1]. With the aid of Models 1.1 and 1.2, we show that if the agricultural industry is to operate under the price structure suggested by the act, other goals (targets) not specified in the act might not be obtained. One such goal is the maintenance of "balanced exports" as reflected in the farmers' response to the prices.
Figure 15 shows agricultural exports under Model 1.1, Model 1.2, and 1972-73 averages. Under Model 1.1 assumptions, farmers received the 1974-75 target prices for their exported commodities. However, under Model 1.2 assumptions, these prices have been adjusted (Table 6) such that a "balanced export basket" is being produced. The export of feed grains (corn, sorghum, and barley) are clearly being suppressed by the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1), which at the same time encourages the export of wheat and cotton. The adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) tend to encourage feed grain production and suppress wheat and cotton production relative to Model 1.2 (Figure 15). The relative product mix of exports under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) is more in line with the 1972-73 farm exports' mix.

The way in which the government can obtain the most desirable export mix is shown by the study. If it is desirable to encourage the export of directly consumed commodities, wheat and cotton, then the relative ratio of prices as specified in the Agricultural Act of 1973 [21] and used in Model 1.1 seems to be appropriate. However, if it is desired to increase the relative proportion of feed grains in the export basket, the relative

81

prices used in the adjusted target price alternative (Model 1.2) seem to

be appropriate.

The different price support policies can have further implications on the regional distribution of production and farm income. The relative distribution of the cultivated land tends to be in favor of wheat and cotton under 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1) and tends to reduce the number of acres devoted to feed grains (Figures 16, 17, and Table 19).









Overall crop acreages increase by about 20 million acres under the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1) and by 28 million acres under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) from 1973 [6]. Silage crops (corn and sorghum) present the sharpest increase in acres, up about 30 million acres from 1973, reflecting the substitution of the silages for grains in the livestock rations.

Another major difference in the crop acreage distribution is the appearance of more legume hay and less nonlegume hay in both models compared to 1973 acreages (Figure 16). While the total number of hay acres in Models 1.1 and 1.2 is almost identical to the number of hay acres harvested in 1973 (62.2 million acres), legume hay under Models 1.1 and 1.2 accounts for 83 percent of the total hay acreages. This is compared with only 44 percent legume hay in 1973 [6]. This change, as was explained earlier, reflects an increased utilization of nonfertilizer nitrogen. If the nitrogen produced by the legume crops is credited to the crops which will follow it, as was done in this study, a sizeable advantage is shown by a rotation with a legume crop compared to a nonlegume rotation. Here the model does not take into account noncost technical difficulties

85

COAT

C.

associated with the production of legume hay. Despite the technical dif-

ficulties, as nitrogen becomes more scarce and expensive because of the

energy shortage, and the cost of high protein supplements increases in

response to the increase in foreign demand, especially for soybeans, farmers may move toward a larger acreage of legume crops as a source of roughage

as well as nitrogen for their crops.

The overall land use increases by about six million acres under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) compared with the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1). However, the national average land rent (marginal value products) does not show any significant change (Table 23). The regional land rents however, reflect the relative changes in the crops grown. For example, the land rent under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) in the North Central region increases because of the larger corn acreage. At the same time, the land rent in the North Atlantic region declines because of the smaller wheat acreage under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2

Table 23.	Land rents (marginal value products) under 1974-75 target
	prices (Model 1.1) and adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) in 1985.

Major Zone	Major Zone Model 1.1	
United States	(dollars per 31.63	acre) 31.59
North Atlantic	14.61	10.84
South Atlantic	14.04	14.65
North Central	33.03	37.74

86

South Central	42.05	33.21
Great Plains	21.28	23.39
Northwest	38.12	40.00
Southwest	26.81	23.97

The effect of the different pricing policies on the overall domestic cost of food can be measured in terms of per capita cost of food. Under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2), the per capita cost of food is up by less than three percent from the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1).

Farm income, defined here as the total return to land, water, and labor, is \$85 million higher under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) than under the 1974-75 target prices (Model 1.1).

he

ices

1

OF

ie-

.,2

1

del 1.1



V. EXPORT CAPACITY OF U.S. AGRICULTURE AND REGIONAL PRODUCTION FLEXIBILITY

This part of the study is constructed such that U.S. agriculture capacity can be measured under different assumed rates of adjustment in the regional location of production and crop specialization. Model 2.1 assumes only minor adjustments in the regional production pattern when compared with the regional production in 1969 [24]. It requires crop production to meet at least 80 percent of 1969 acres and livestock units. Under Model 2.2 assumptions, the regional location of production is required to meet 50 percent of 1969 acres and livestock units. For the first two models, crop acreages are not allowed to exceed 200 percent of 1969 acreages, and livestock production is not allowed to exceed 300 percent of 1969 livestock units. The last model in set two, Model 2.3, puts no upper or lower limits on the regional production patterns other than those consistent with the rotations, soil loss restraints, and the land base.

The prices used for these models (Table 24) are twice the level of

the commodity export prices determined under adjusted target prices (Model 1.2). The three models in set two used the high export prices to encourage full use of the nation's agricultural resources.

A maximum annual soil loss limit of five tons per acre restricts the crop rotations selected in this part of the study. This restriction encourages the use of farming practices such that, even with increased production and exports of agricultural products, environmental standards can be maintained.

88

Commodity	Unit	1973 ^a	High export prices
Wheat	bushel	\$4.00	\$4.00
Corn		2.38	3.00
Cotton	pound	.45	.56
Barley	bushel	2.13	2.80
Sorghum		3.80	3.40
Oats		1.16	1.30
Soybeans	х п	5.57	5.57

Table 24. Commodity export prices under the high export prices in 1985 (Models 2.1, 2.2, and 2.3) and actual 1973 prices.

^aSource: Statistical Reporting Service [17].

S .

rcent

)SE

lel

16

2

-

11

If no restriction is imposed on the export of corn and cotton, the model will export these commodities in quantities that exceed a reasonable market mix. To overcome this problem, a maximum export of 3.5 billion bushels of corn and 10 million bales of cotton are imposed on the model. These levels still allow for a substantial increase in exports over the 1973 levels of 1.2 billion bushels and 6.1 million bales for corn and cotton, respectively [23].

Production Location Patterns Restricted to

80 Percent of the 1969 Acres (Model 2.1)

Model 2.1 is the most locationally restrictive model in set two. The 1985 production location restrictions include: a minimum of 80 percent of the acres planted in 1969 for corn, wheat, soybeans, cotton, sorghum, and legume hay. These crops, except legume hay, also have a maximum limit of twice the acres planted in 1969 [24]. Legume hay acreage in 1985 is allowed to increase to three times the 1969 acres. A minimum of 80 percent and a maximum of 300 percent of the 1969 livestock production level in each region is set for beef cow, beef feeding, hogs, and dairy production.

Commodity production and utilization

The levels of production, domestic consumption, and exports of the specified agricultural commodities are given in Table 25. Exports of the feed grains increase from 1.4 billion bushels under Model 1.2 (Table 15) to 5.5 billion bushels, almost four times, in response to the higher export prices of Model 2.1. The export of feed grains under the higher export prices is about three times greater than the 1973 feed grain export level [23]. Wheat exports increase from about 1.1 billion bushels to 1.8 billion bushels in response to the price increase between Models 1.2 and 2.1. Soybean exports increase from 0.9 billion bushels in Model 1.2 to 1.4 billion bushels in Model 2.1 (Tables 15 and 25, respectively). Cotton exports under Model 2.1 are at the upper limit allowed of 10 million bales. This compares to the 6.1 million bales exported in 1973 [23], the recent high export level for cotton. As a result of the high meat prices in Model 2.1, the domestic consumption of beef and pork is lower than under Model 1.2. This reduction in demand for livestock products frees feed grains for export as well as freeing land from roughage production. Model 2.1 shows that with moderate flexibility, U.S. farmers can increase their output and exports substantially in response to the higher export prices by 1985.

Commodity	Unit	Production	Domestic Consumption	Exports
Corn	million bu.	8,117.3	4,617.3	3,500.0
Sorghum	0	1,350.4	271.1	1,079.3
Barley	11	821.7	219.8	601.9
Oats	11	570.3	249.6	320.7
Wheat	11	2,436.4	668.1	1,768.3
Soybeans		2,540.1	1,127.1	1,413.0
Legume hay	million tons	143.7	143.7	0.0
Nonlegume hay	11	195.1	195.1	0.0
Silage	u	292.2	292.2	0.0
Cotton	million bales	18.1	8.1	10.0
Sugar beets	million tons	26.4	26.4	0.0
Pork ^a	million cwt.	156.2	158.6	-2.4 ^t
Milk products ^C	11	1,167.3	1,170.6	-3.3
Beef ^a	(I	246.6	262.7	-16.1

Table 25. Commodity production and utilization under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1).

^aCarcass weight equivalent ^bImports

^CMilk equivalent

Land use

S

rcent

ion.

e

the

5)

r.

ort

1.8

ıd

)

ton

les.

it

T

se

The higher commodity prices in Model 2.1 bring an additional 22 million acres of dryland into cultivation (Table 26). The acreage shifts include increases of 18 million acres in row crops and 17 million acres in close-grown crops and a reduction of over 15 million acres of hay crops. The higher return for the export commodities encourages maximum production

the second s				Street Street Street	1.00	
Zone and soil class	Row	Close grown	All _a hay	Pasture	Other ^b	Total
		(000) acres)			- Williams
United States	204,706	98,455	39,626	635,491	10.631	988,909
1, 11	129,706	38,809	17,205	0	2.069	187,789
IIIE, IVE	36,662	41,094	12,906	0	5.646	96.308
Other III, IV	37,841	17,524	7,284	0	2,682	65,331
V-VIII	497	1,028	2,231	0	234	3,990
North Atlantic	5,496	1,237	2,555	11,365	227	20,880
1, 11	3,364	612	1,345	0	104	5,425
IIIE, IVE	778	436	815	0	61	2,090
Other III, IV	1,341	186	395	0	35	1,957
V-VIII	13	3	0	0	27	43
South Atlantic	20,306	1,638	1,063	36,533	1,555	61.095
,	13,067	896	392	0	260	14,615
IIIE, IVE	2,925	476	504	0	91	3,996
Other III, IV	4,221	262	167	0	1,070	5,720
V-V	93	4	0	0	134	231
North Central	108,962	24,261	12,068	53,235	328	198,854
,	79,753	16,164	4,041	0	94	100.052
IIIE, IVE	16,886	4,150	5,353	0	133	26.522
Other III, IV	12,269	3,769	2,083	0	78	18,199
V-VIII	54	178	591	0	23	846
South Central	49,763	25,531	9,693	172,234	548	257.769
1, 11	24,171	10,168	2,511	0	337	37.187
IIIE, IVE	9,729	11,290	3,928	0	153	25,100
Other III, IV	15,835	3,954	3,212	0	30	23.031
V-VIII	28	119	42	0	28	217
Great Plains	9,363	33,944	11,470	190,184	7,553	252.514
1, 11	6,331	8,935	8,063	0	1,144	24,473
IIIE, IVE	2,102	18,456	1,662	0	5.043	27.263

Table 26. Dryland acreages by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1).

92

IIIE, IVE	2,102	18,456	1,662	0	5.043	27.263
Other III, IV	903	6,062	170	0	1.366	8,501
V-VIII	27	491	1,575	0	0	2.093
Northwest	303	8,286	2,013	48,243	204	59.049
1, 11	64	1,222	771	0	38	2.095
IIIE, IVE	112	5,565	183	0	97	5,957
Other III, IV	82	1,488	1,036	. 0	56	2.662
V - V I I I	45	11	23	0	13	92
Southwest	10,513	3,558	764	123,697	216	138.748
1, 11	2,956	812	82	0	92	3,942
IIIE, IVE	4,130	721	461	0	68	5,380
Other III, IV	3,190	1,803	221	0	47	5.261
V - V I I I	237	222	0	0	9	468

a Including other hay and cropland pasture.

b Summer fallow lands and orchards and vineyards. per acre utilizing higher cost per unit output processes. Regionally, the changes in dryland use include an increase of 4.5 million acres in the South Atlantic region, 6.0 million acres in the North Central region, 2.1 million acres in the South Central region, 6.6 million acres in the Great Plains region, and only minor changes elsewhere (Tables 16 and 26).

Irrigated land use totals over 35 million acres for both the adjusted target price and the high export price alternatives (Tables 17 and 27, respectively). The high export price alternative (Model 2.1) has a larger row crop acreage but smaller acreage of the close-grown and hay crops. The Southwest and South Central regions are the only areas where total irrigation increases in response to the high export prices.

Almost 10 million of the 14.6 million idle acres (Table 28) are on land groups V to VIII, which are characterized by high soil loss. For Model 2.1, incorporating a 5-ton soil loss limit, 68 percent of the idle acres are in land groups V to VIII (Table 28), while under Model 1.2, incorporating the 10-ton limit, only 33 percent of the idle acres are on land groups V to VIII (Table 18). The land that remains idle is land which either has a high erosion level, and thus presents an ecological problem, or is of low productivity making it unprofitable to cultivate.

93

Land rent increases by approximately 300 percent as export prices double from the adjusted target price level (Model 1.2). Regionally, the land rents increase proportionally more in the high-yielding central and southern sections of the United States (Table 29). The much larger increases in the land rents arise because the supply of land is relatively inelastic and any increase in the return per acre is directly capitalized into the value of land.

Zone and soil class	Row	Close grown	All _a hay	Pasture	Other	Total
the Device I have been		(0	00 acres)	a	And and a state	Mines and
United States	12,336	4,369	7,378	9,503	1,600	35 186
1, 11	8.716	1,905	4 177	0	03/1	15 720
IIIE, IVE	1.391	544	783	0	210	12,/32
Other III, IV	2,209	1.868	2 3 2 5	0	121	2,920
V-VIII	20	52	2, 525	0	451	0,033
North Atlantic	0	0		0	25	190
1. 11	0	0	0	0	0	0
LILE, IVE	0	0	0	0	0	0
Other III IV	0	0	0	0	0	0
V-V111	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Atlantic	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	0	0	0	0	0
LLIE IVE	0	0	0	0	0	0
Other III IV	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	0	0	0	0	0
V-VIII	0	0	0	0	0	0
North Central	0	0	478	0	0	478
1, 11	0	0	358	0	0	358
TITE, IVE	0	0	4	0	0	4
Other III, IV	0	0	116	0	0	116
V-VIII	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Central	2,170	656	285	198	87	3,396
1, 11	1,144	304	231	0	86	1,765
IIIE, IVE	254	36	52	0	1	343
Other III, IV	772	315	2	0	0	1.089
V-VIII	0	1	0	0	0	1
Great Plains	4,897	1,273	2,470	5.394	17	14 051
1, 11	3.745	848	1,718	0	5	6 316
IIIE, IVE	708	156	252	0	â	1 124
0.1				0	0	1,124

Table 27. Irrigated acreages by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1).

94

Other III, IV	439	269	500	0	3	1.211
V-VIII	5	0	0	0	1	6
Northwest	1,738	1,643	2,710	2,366	679	9,136
,	1,140	574	1,208	0	394	3,316
IIIE, IVE	249	250	296	0	108	903
Other III, IV	337	768	1,113	• 0	164	2,382
V-VIII	12	51	93	0	13	169
Southwest	3,531	797	1,435	1,545	817	8,125
1, 11	2,687	179	662	0	449	3,977
IIIE, IVE	180	102	179	0	93	554
Other III, IV	661	516	594	0	264	2,035
V-VIII	3	0	0	0	11	14

^aIncluding other hay and cropland pasture.

^bSummer fallow lands and orchards and vineyards.

Table 28. Cropland utilization by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1).

S

Zone and	Availa	able land ^a	U	nused crop	land
soil class	Dry	Irrig.	Dry	Irrig.	Total
The second se		(000 a	acres)		
United States	344,172	29,437	13,967	652	14,619
1, 11	175,594	18,107	32	358	390
IIIE, IVE	93,982	4,768	2,353	117	2,470
Other III, IV	61,392	6,256	1,677	105	1,782
V-VIII	13,204	306	9,905	72	9,977
North Atlantic	10,268	0	1,755	0	1,755
1. 11	4,838	0	0	0	0
LILE, IVE	2,743	0	827	0	827
Other III. IV	2,140	0	381	0	381
V-V111	547	0	547	0	547
South Atlantic	22.477	0	2.426	0	2.426
	12.724	0	0	0	0
LILE IVE	4,196	0	591	Õ	591
Other III IV	4 534	0	812	0	812
V-V111	1 023	0	1 023	0	1 023
North Central	144 470	481	3 259	0	3 259
	97 001	358	0,200	Ő	0,200
LITE IVE	26 150	4	68	0	68
Other III IV	17 522	119	161	0	161
vvill	3 797	0	3 030	0	3 030
V-VIII	85 1.27	2 724	3,000	226	3 725
South Central	25 1/17	2,154	22	126	158
1, 11	21, 022	2,450	2/1/1	120	2/1/1
THE, IVE	24,952	870	200	01	200
Other III, IV	22,300	0/9	299	91	2 922
V-V111	2,902	9 705	2,024	120	2,033
Great Plains	01,051	9,795	2,299	129	2,420
1, 11	23,0/0	0,020	220	02	1.22
IIIE, IVE	20,145	1,909	559	03	422
Other III, IV	/,/1/	1,000	1 055	1.0	5
V-V111	3,913	90	1,955	46	2,001
Northwest	9,428	5,884	353	0	353
1, 11	1,538	2,/81	0	0	0
IIIE, IVE	5,188	1,066	0	0	0
Other III, IV	2,328	1,893	0	0	0
V-VIII	374	144	353	0	353
Southwest	10,451	9,543	376	297	673
1, 11	470	6,482	0	232	232
IIIE, IVE	4,628	1,321	184	34	218
Other III, IV	4,785	1,677	19	14	33
V-VIII	568	63	173	17	190

^a Includes only cropland available for endogenous crops.

Table 29.	Land rents (marginal	value products) under the adjusted
	target prices (Model	1.2) and the high export prices
	(Model 2.1) in 1985.	

Zone	Model 1.2	Model 2.1
	(Dollar:	s per acre)
United States	31.59	92.62
North Atlantic	10.84	22.99
South Atlantic	14.65	56.89
North Central	37.74	112.08
South Central	33.21	99.79
Great Plains	23.39	70.92
Northwest	40.00	89.92
Southwest	23.97	65.57

Regional location of production and commodity prices

Comparing regional location of production under Model 2.1 to location under adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) reveals only minor changes. The change in production under the high export price assumptions (Model 2.1) resulted from increasing intensity of production in almost all regions. The decrease in hay acreage is most pronounced in the Corn Belt and in the

96

wheat growing regions where the hay crops are replaced by the exported crops: corn, wheat, sorghum, and soybeans. The additional acres of the row crops spread west and north of the traditional Corn Belt states.

In general, commodity prices increase in the same proportion as export prices increased from Model 1.2 with moderate exports to Model 2.1 with high exports. For example, the export price of corn increases from \$1.50 to \$3.00 per bushel, and at the same time, the national average selling price of corn increases from \$1.45 to \$2.86 per bushel (Tables 20 and 30).

National selling prices are not the same as export prices because of transportation costs between the location of production and the exporting market regions. But, the weighted average commodity prices for all the exporting market regions (coastline regions) are exactly equal to the export prices. The average cost of transportation for export, is equal to the difference between the export price and the national selling price. For example, the average cost of transporting one bushel of corn for export is 14 cents (\$3.00 minus \$2.86). The commodity location price accounts for up to 16 percent of the total commodity price in the case of sorghum and as little as two percent of the total commodity price in the case of corn (Table 30). The relatively large increases in the price of feed grains and roughages are reflected in proportionate increases in the feed costs portion of the livestock activities. The price of pork increases by 37 percent and beef by 27 percent (Tables 20 and 30), reflecting the higher nonfeed costs per unit of output of the beef sector. The reduction in the per capita consumption of beef and pork in response to the higher prices (Table 5) also has an impact on the final equilibrium of livestock and commodity prices. The lower total demand allows the livestock to concentrate relatively more heavily in those areas where its production

97

is efficient and tends to reduce the feed price impact.

Feed consumed by livestock

on

18

he

ort

0

).

Many of the changes in feed consumption are the result of the relative change in the level of the per capita consumption of livestock products mentioned above. The decline in the consumption of livestock affects the

Commodity	Unit	Supply price	Location price	Total price
		((Dollars per unit)	and restart
Corn	(Bu.)	2.79	0.07	2.86
Sorghum	(Bu.)	2.73	0.55	3.28
Barley	(Bu.)	2.53	0.00	2.53
Oats	(Bu.)	1.26	0.00	1.26
Wheat	(Bu.)	3.25	0.55	3.80
Soybeans	(Bu.)	5.42	0.17	5.58
Legume hay	(Ton)	42.11	4.07	46.18
Nonlegume hay	(Ton)	45.46	0.00	45.46
Silage	(Ton)	13.04	1.61	14.66
Cotton	(Lb.)	0.54	0.66	0.60
Porka	(Cwt.)	56.51	0.43	56.94
Milk ^b	(Cwt.)	6.13	0.59	6.73
Beef	(Cwt.)	88.76	0.84	89.60

Table 30. U.S. average commodity supply, location, and total prices under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1).

^aCarcass weight equivalent.

^bMilk equivalent.

relative use of the feed components. Consumption of feed grains, high protein supplements, and wheat is reduced by 300 million bushels, 12.2 billion pounds, and 44 million bushels, respectively. These quantities can move directly into the export market. The 121 million ton reduction in roughage allows for a reallocation of their acres to the export crops (Tables 21 and 31).

Class	Feed grains ^a	High protein supplements ^b	Wheat	Forages ^C
	(000 bu.)	(000 cwt.)	(000 bu.)	(000 tons)
Beef cows	65,501	42,323	0	232,370
Beef feeding	228,388	85,077	0	77,553
Dairy	1,410,733	60,878	0	38,124
Hogs	1,865,231	154,351	159	1,961
All other ^d	1,211,236	249,064	41,794	96,113
Total	4,781,088	591,693	41,953	446,121

Table 31. Feed consumption by class of livestock in the United States under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.1).

^aCorn equivalent.

1 e

^bIncludes soybean and cottonseed oilmeals and high-protein grain supplements. Does not include animal protein supplements.

^cIncludes legume hay, nonlegume hay, and pasture, corn, and sorghum silages in hay-equivalent tons.

^dIncludes sheep and lambs, broilers, turkeys, eggs, and other livestock.

> Production Location Patterns Restricted to 50 Percent of the 1969 Acres (Model 2.2)

Model 2.2 is the intermediate step between the higher restrictive

production location alternatives and the removal of these restrictions altogether. Under Model 2.2 assumptions, a minimum of 50 percent in each region of the number of acres planted in 1969 is required in 1985 for the following crops: corn, wheat, sorghum, soybeans, cotton, and legume hay. A maximum of only 200 percent of the acres planted in 1969 [24] is allowed in 1985 for all the above crops except for legume hay, in which case an

upper limit of 300 percent is allowed. For the four livestock activities-beef cows, beef feeding, dairy cows, and hogs--a minimum of 50 percent of the number of units raised in 1969 is required in 1985 and a maximum of 300 percent of the 1969 level is allowed. All other assumptions employed in Model 2.2 are identical with those used in Model 2.1. Any change in the model results thus can be attributed to the changes in the production location restraints. Differences between these results and those obtained under 80 percent minimum production restraints in Model 2.1 are very small. The only significant difference is an increase in the export of oats-about 60 million bushels more than in Model 2.1.

As in production, only minor changes in land use are observed between Model 2.1 (80 percent restriction) and Model 2.2 (50 percent restriction). The total cultivated dryland increases by only 200,000 acres under Model 2.2. The decline in row crop and close-grown crop acreages (about one million acres) is offset by the increase in cultivated hay crops. A slight increase in the acreage of irrigated cropland occurs. The average land rent decreases by about \$3 per acre under Model 2.2. Regionally,

the land rents vary from an increase of \$6.78 per acre in the North Atlantic region to a reduction of \$9.31 per acre in the South Central region.

Regional location of production and commodity prices

Only minor changes in production location occur between Model 2.1 (80 percent minimum production) and Model 2.2 (50 percent minimum production). There are some substitutions within the row crop category, but only minor substitutions between the row crops and close-grown crops. The change in regional production location price is sometimes substantial; however, the effect of the increase in regional flexibility on the average price of commodities is quite small (Tables 30 and 32). This implies that the total gain to the economy, if measured in terms of opportunity costs of production, obtained from an increase in flexibility of location of production, is quite small.

Commodity	Unit	Supply price	Location price	Total price
- all the many local	Depter line -	(Do1)	lars per unit)	
Corn	(Bu.)	2.75	0.08	2.83
Sorghum	(Bu.)	2.62	0.57	3.18
Barley	(Bu.)	2.53	0.00	2.53
Oats	(Bu.)	1.23	0.00	1.23
Wheat	(Bu.)	3.27	0.45	3.72
Soybeans	(Bu.)	5.35	0.13	5.49
Legume hay	(Ton)	41.87	4.29	46.16
Nonlegume hay	(Ton)	44.76	0.00	44.76
Silage	(Ton)	12.88	1.50	14.38
Cotton	(Lb.)	0.52	0.04	0.56
Porka	(Cwt.)	56.87	0.44	57.31

Table 32. U.S. average commodity supply, location, and total prices under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.2).

101

Milk ^D	(Cwt.)	6.09	0.14	6.23
Beefa	(Cwt.)	91.64	0.70	92.34

^aCarcass weight equivalent.

^bMilk equivalent.

les--

of

red

1

lon

ned

all.

leen

n),

1

onally,

egion.

ut

Production Location Patterns With No Regional Production Restraints (Model 2.3)

Model 2.3 analyzes the U.S. agriculture industry's capacity to export agricultural products if a complete adjustment in regional location of production is possible. This model represents a measurement of the maximum long-run export capacity of U.S. agriculture if it is assumed that all resources are flexible and producers respond fully to economic forces. In analyzing and comparing the production patterns indicated by Model 2.3 (no location restrictions), Model 2.1 (80 percent of 1969 restrictions) serves as the base. Under Model 2.3 assumptions, corn grain exports are restricted to a maximum of 3.5 billion bushels and cotton exports to 10 million bales to maintain a "balanced export" pattern, as was done in Models 2.1 and 2.2.

Commodity production and utilization

Model 2.3 results show a substantial increase in the production and exports of sorghum grain, barley, oats, wheat, and soybeans (Table 33). Sorghum exports under Model 2.3 are 1.5 billion bushels. This compares

102

with only 0.2 billion bushels of sorghum exports in 1973 [23]. Compared with Model 2.1, exports of barley decline by 244 million bushels and oats decline by 157 million bushels (Tables 33 and 25). Wheat exports increase to 2.0 billion bushels compared with only 1.2 billion bushels in 1973 [23]. Soybean exports also increase substantially from 1.4 billion bushels in Model 2.1 to 1.8 billion bushels in Model 2.3. Soybean exports were at an all-time high in 1974, when the United States exported 0.5 billion bushels of soybeans and soybean products [6].

Commodities	Unit	Production	Domestic Consumption	Exports
Corn	million bu.	7,922.9	4,422.9	3,500.0
Sorghum	(1	1,736.0	192.2	1,453.8
Barley	11	579.9	222.0	357.9
Oats	11	261.4	97.6	163.8
Wheat	0	2,662.6	667.8	1,994.5
Soybeans	11	2,808.4	1,051.2	1,757.2
Legume hay	million tons	167.0	167.0	0.0
Nonlegume hay	11	186.4	186.4	0.0
Silage	11	272.3	272.3	0.0
Cotton	million bales	18.1	8.1	10.0
Sugar beets	million tons	26.4	26.4	0.0
Porka	million cwt.	156.2	158.6	-2.4 ^b
Milk products ^C	11	1,167.3	1,170.6	-2.3 ^b
Beef ^a	11	246.6	262.7	-16.1 ^b

Table 33. Commodity production and utilization under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3).

^aCarcass weight equivalent.

^bImports.

^CMilk equivalents.

The increase in export levels, which results from removing the upper

limits on the regional location of production restraints, are great. In Model 2.2, the reduction in the location of production restraints did not, in many cases, increase the potential acreage of the region's most advantageous crop, as the acreage of this crop was already at its upper limit. In order to reach full production capacity of agricultural commodities, however, many regions have to more than double their cultivated acreage of specific crops. If an increased regional concentration of crops and a change to production methods consistent with increased output is attained, then export levels significantly above present levels could be forthcoming.

Land use

Removal of the regional restrictions on production has resulted in the increased use of more than four million acres of dryland (Table 34) and 440,000 acres of irrigated land (Table 35). Row crop acreage increases by almost seven million acres and hay crops increase by about five million acres, while close-grown crops decrease by about four million acres when compared with Model 2.1 (Tables 26 and 27). Changes in the acreage of some crops include: soybeans and legume hay increase more than eight million acres each; wheat and sorghum grain increase more than six million acres each; corn silage increases more than 2.5 million acres; barley, oats, and corn grain reduce by about five million acres each; nonlegume hay and summer fallow decrease three million acres each; and cotton decreases about two million acres.

104

The more efficient location of crop production, in general, results in higher yields. However, in cases where a large increase in the crop acreage takes place, some of the increase in yield is offset by the additional acres of lower yielding land. In some cases, the resulting yield is lower than the yield obtained under Model 2.1. As a result of specialization, a noticeable yield change is indicated for cotton, up by .3 bales per acre. This higher yield allows the same number of bales to be

Zone and soil class	Row	Close grown	All hay ^a	Pasture	0ther ^b	Total
		(00)				
United States	211,443	93.702	45.033	635.491	7.431	993.100
	130 125	37 028	19 000	0	1 868	188 021
ILLE IVE	41 378	36 122	17 262	0	2 920	97 682
Other III IV	39 322	19 071	6 114	0	2,920	66, 916
V_VIII	618	1 481	2 657	0	2,409	4 990
North Atlantic	6 720	1,401	2,007	11 265	227	92 155
	0,720	270	2,052	11,305	104	5 1.25
1, 11	4,152	570	1 662	0	61	2,422
THE, IVE	1 0/0	509	1,003	0	25	2,004
Uther III, IV	1,940	105	250	0	22	2,330
V-VIII	1/	2/	92	26 522	1 555	103
South Atlantic	20,088	2,021	2,300	30,533	1,555	62,49/
1, 11	13,225	865	265	0	260	14,615
IIIE, IVE	2,858	1/2	865	0	91	4,586
Other III, IV	3,912	380	1,170	0	1,070	6,532
V-V111	93	4	0	0	134	231
North Central	112,045	25,755	7,979	53,235	262	199,276
1, 11	81,215	15,766	2,978	0	94	100,053
IIIE, IVE	17,452	5,404	3,625	0	67	26,548
Other III, IV	13,151	4,200	811	0	78	18,240
V-V111	227	385	565	0	23	1,200
South Central	48,930	22,357	15,256	172,234	238	259,015
1, 11	21,187	9,479	6,569	0	112	37,347
IIIE, IVE	11,683	7,468	6,220	0	75	25,446
Other III, IV	15,997	5,209	2,173	0	23	23,402
V-VIII	63	201	294	0	28	586
Great Plains	14,226	31,398	11,563	190,184	4,719	252,090
1, 11	7,374	8,654	7,307	0	1,150	24,485
IIIE, IVE	5,775	16,295	2,323	0	2,453	26,846
Other III, IV	1,050	5.958	358	0	1,116	8,482
V-VIII	27	491	1,575	0	0	2,093
Northwest	303	7,004	3,319	48,243	171	59,040
1. 11	64	1,230	771	0	38	2,103

Table 34. Dryland acreages by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3).

ut

d

ases

ion

n

n

S

and

some

IIIE, IVE	112	4,330	1,402	0	97	5,941
Other III, IV	82	1,433	1,123	0	23	2,661
V-V111	45	11	23	0	13	92
Southwest	9,131	4,156	1,784	123,697	259	139,027
1, 11	2,928	664	291	0	110	3,993
IIIE, IVE	2,867	1,344	1,164	0	76	5,451
Other III, IV	3,190	1,786	221	0	64	5,261
V-VIII	146	362	108	0	9	625

a Including other hay and cropland pasture.

^bSummer fallow lands and orchards and vineyards.

in .	1985 (Mod	el 2.3).				
Zone and soil class	Row	Close grown	All hay ^a	Pasture	Other ^b	Total
		(00	00 acres)			
United States	12,239	5,468	6,816	9.503	1,600	35 626
1, 11	8,685	1,985	4,053	0	934	15 657
IIIE, IVE	1,425	728	1.069	0	210	3 432
Other III, IV	2,109	2,703	1,597	0	431	6 840
V-VIII	20	52	97	0	25	10/
North Atlantic	0	0	0	0	25	194
1.11	0	0	0	0	0	0
LIF IVE	0	Ő	0	0	0	0
Other III IV	0	0	0	0	0	0
V-V111	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Atlantic	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	0	0	0	0	0
1115 11/5	0	0	0	0	0	0
Other III IV	0	0	0	0	0	0
vvviii, iv	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	0	0	0	0	0
North Central	0	0	467	0	0	467
1, 11	0	0	358	0	0	358
ITTE, IVE	0	0	4	0	0	4
Other III, IV	0	0	105	0	0	105
V-VIII	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Central	2,245	628	235	198	87	3,393
1, 11	1,218	279	181	0	86	1.764
IIIE, IVE	253	35	52	0	1	341
Other III, IV	774	313	2	0	0	1.089
V-VIII	0	1	0	0	0	1,000
Great Plaines	4,822	1,584	2,743	5.394	17	14 560
1, 11	3,704	961	1.636	0	5	6 306
IIIE, IVE	748	341	524	0	8	1 621
Other III, IV	365	282	579	Ő	3	1 220
V-VIII	5	0	4	0	1	1,229
Northwest	1.738	1.843	2 518	2 366	679	0 1/1
1, 11	1,138	572	1 204	2,500	30/1	2,144
IIIE, IVE	251	250	310	0	108	5,500
Other III. IV	337	970	911	0	164	2 202
V-VIII	12	51	03	0	104	2,302
Southwest	3 434	1 413	853	1 545	917	0 0(0
1. 11	2 625	172	671	1,545	01/	0,062
ILLE IVE	172	102	170	0	449	3,921
Other III IV	622	1 120	1/9	0	93	54/
V-V111	2000	1,130	0	0	264	2,035
v viii	3	0	0	0	11	14

Table 35. Irrigated acreages by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3).

^a Including other hay and cropland pasture.

^b Summer fallow lands and orchards and vineyards.

produced on almost two million acres less land. Under the given cotton export limit of 10 million bales, the removal of the production restraints shifts cotton acres from the irrigated lands of the Southwest (Arizona, New Mexico, and part of Texas) to the dryland acres in the Southeast.

Under Model 2.3 only ten million acres remained unused (Table 36). Of this total, nine million acres are on land groups V to VIII which are subject to high erosion rates normally above the limit of five tons per acre per year used in this model.

The removal of the restrictions on the location of production increases the average land rent to \$108.35 per acre (Table 37), an increase of 17 percent compared to Model 2.1 (Table 29). The increase in land rent, as a result of the removal of the regional restriction on production, is due to a shift in the returns above costs totally to the land. The increase in land rents can be used as a partial measure of the degree of inefficiency in the regional location of production exhibited in the previous models (Models 2.1 and 2.2).

Water use

The total water consumed under Model 2.3 declines to 98.8 million acre-feet (Table 39). This decline in water use occurs concurrently with an increase of 440,000 acres of irrigated cropland. Thus, the removal of the restrictions on location of production allows a more efficient use of water as high water-using crops are moved to rainfed areas and the lower water-using crops are substituted allowing for greater acreage in areas where previously water availability limited production. Regionally,

107

Zone and	Availa	ble land ^a	U	nused crop1	and
soil class	Dry	Irrig.	Dry	Irrig.	Total
		(000	acres)		12/14 10 100
United States	344,172	29,437	9,606	384	9,990
1, 11	175,594	18,107	0	238	238
IIIE, IVE	93,982	4,768	517	75	592
Other III, IV	61,392	6,256	175	14	189
V-VIII	13,204	306	8.914	57	8 971
North Atlantic	10,268	0	479	0	479
1, 11	4,838	0	0	0	1/5
IIIE, IVE	2,743	0	53	0	53
Other III, IV	2,140	0	0	Ő	0
V-VIII	547	0	426	0	426
South Atlantic	22,477	0	1.023	0	1 023
1, 11	12,724	0	0	0	1,025
IIIE, IVE	4,196	0	0	0	0
Other III, IV	4,534	0	0	0	0
V-VIII	1,023	0	1.023	Ő	1 023
North Central	144,470	481	2,850	0	2 850
1, 11	97,001	358	2,000	0	2,000
IIIE, IVE	26,150	4	43	0	13
Other III, IV	17,522	119	131	0	121
V-VIII	3,797	0	2.676	0	2 676
South Central	85.427	3.734	2,476	8	2,070
1, 11	35.147	2.458	-, . , 0	0	2,404
LILE, IVE	24,932	388	0	0	0
Other III, IV	22.366	879	20	0	20
V-VIII	2,982	9	2.456	8	2 464
Great Plains	61.651	9.795	2,260	83	2 343
1, 11	23.876	6.028	0	0	2,545
IIIE, IVE	26,145	1,989	300	41	341
Other III. IV	7.717	1,688	5	0	5
V-VIII	3,913	90	1.955	42	1 997
Northwest	9.428	5.884	353	0	353
1. 11	1.538	2.781	0	0	
LILE, IVE	5,188	1.066	0	0	0
Other III. IV	2.328	1,893	0	0	0
V-VIII	374	144	353	0	353
Southwest	10,451	9.543	165	293	158
1.11	470	6.482	0	238	238
LILE, IVE	4,628	1,321	121	34	155
Other III IV	4,785	1,677	19	14	22
V-V111	568	63	25	7	22

5

Table 36. Cropland utilization by major zones under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3).

8 5

^a Includes only cropland available for endogenous crops.

Table 37.	Land rents	(marginal v	value produc	ts) of	alternat	ive land
	classes by	major zones	s under high	export	prices	in 1985
	(Model 2.3).				

	Land classes					
Zone	1, 11	IIIE, IVE	111-1V	V-VIII	Total ^a	
		(Dolla	rs per acre))	-	
United States	130.66	82.65	87.60	21.63	108.35	
North Atlantic	116.35	56.95	82.52	22.94	91.48	
South Atlantic	108.97	68.80	62.80	0.00	91.34	
North Central	137.68	105.66	85.71	17.70	124.45	
South Central	141.38	93.85	113.13	27.50	119.24	
Great Plains	107.99	56.67	59.39	17.65	78.12	
Northwest	166.18	92.51	77.28	96.85	109.53	
Southwest	98.40	66.00	67.77	16.10	76.19	

^aExcluding other hay and pasture lands.

a great decline in water consumption appears in the California-South Pacific region where the total water consumption declines by 2.6 million acre-feet (Table 38). At the same time, the consumption of water increases in the upper Colorado and the Columbia-North Pacific regions. The national average price of water (marginal value products) increases only slightly

109

to \$19.53 per acre-foot.

Commodity prices and location of production

The removal of location restrictions on production creates a

significant change in the value of the commodities produced. Nationally, the weighted average price of the commodities is reduced by only one

riv	er basins	under high ex	port prices in	1985 (Mod	lel 2.3).
		Pro	jected 1985		a sub-
River basin	Total 1970 ^a	Agriculture	Municipal and industrial ^b	0ther ^c	Total
		(00)	0 acre-feet per	year)	
		Withdrawa	als		
Western basins Missouri ArkWhite-Red Texas-Gulf Rio Grande U. Colorado L. Colorado Great Basin ColN. Pacific CalS. Pacific	182,896 26,880 13,440 23,520 7,056 9,072 8,064 7,504 33,600 53,760	89,302 15,146 4,911 5,313 4,850 3,424 5,569 2,950 17,355 29,784	41,962 5,174 8,486 13,164 1,084 690 1,013 742 5,109 6,500	6,248 1,734 0 0 189 1,937 1,177 0 1,211	137,512 22,054 13,397 18,477 5,934 4,303 8,519 4,869 22,464 37,495

Table 38. Withdrawals and consumptive use of water in the western 2.3).

Consumptive use

Western basins Missouri ArkWhite-Red Texas-Gulf Rio Grande U. Colorado L. Colorado Great Basin	82,432 13,440 7,616 6,944 3,696 4,592 5,600	75,778 13,282 4,662 4,202 3,612 2,828 5,244	17,382 990 1,691 6,845 452 286 413	5,550 1,734 0 0 141 1,746	98,710 16,006 6,353 11,047 4,064 3,255 7,403
L. Colorado Great Basin	5,600 3,584	5,244 2,385	413 285	1,746	7,403
ColN. Pacific CalS. Pacific	12,320 24,640	15,000 24,563	907 5,513	0	15,907

110

13. 1

1 -

^aSource: Marry and Reevers [10, Table 17].

^bIncludes rural domestic, municipal, self-supplied industrial, recreation, mining, and thermal electric power.

^cIncludes onsite uses and water exports out of the western basins.

percent (Table 39), but this is accompanied by a significant increase in exports. Using the prices obtained under Model 2.3 as weights (Table 39), the value of the exported commodities increases by 3.2 billion dollars or by 10.6 percent over the Model 2.1 level.

The removal of the locational restrictions of production reduces all location prices to zero, and price variations between different regions under Model 2.3 (no location restrictions) reflect only transportation costs.

Commodity	Unit	Supply price	Location price	Total price
and damant	ferstall	(Do1	lars per unit)	- 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1
Corn	(Bu.)	2.82	0.00	2.82
Sorghum	(Bu.)	3.11	0.00	3.11
Barley	(Bu.)	2.58	0.00	2.58
Oats	(Bu.)	1.12	0.00	1.12
Wheat	(Bu.)	3.70	0.00	3.70
Soybeans	(Bu.)	5.41	0.00	5.41
Legume hay	(Ton)	48.30	0.00	48.30
Nonlegume hay	(Ton)	45.91	0.00	45.91
Silage	(Ton)	15.45	0.00	15.45
Cotton	(Lb.)	• 0.56	0.00	0.56
Porka	(Cwt.)	56.79	0.00	56.79
Milk ^b	(Cwt.)	6.22	0.00	6.22
Beef	(Cwt.)	90.94	0.00	90.94

Table 39.	U.S. average	commodity	supply,	location,	and	total	prices
	under high e	xport price	s in 198	5 (Model	2.3).	6	

^aCarcass weight equivalent.

^bMilk equivalent.

Feed consumed by livestock

Livestock production under Model 2.3 is the same as in Model 2.1, but some changes occur in the rations of Model 2.3 (Table 40) as compared to Model 2.1 (Table 31). The beef cow ration is based entirely on forages--hays and silages. The beef feeding ration also indicates a substitution of forages for feed grains. Those two changes result in a decreased use of about three million bushels of feed grains for the livestock of Model 2.3, offset by an increase of about eight million tons of forage.

and the second s					
Class	Feed grains ^a	High protein supplements ^b	Wheat	Forages ^C	
22.5	(000 bu.)	(000 cwt.)	(000 bu.)	(000 tons)	
Beef cows	0	-977	0	236,333	
Beef feeding	99,353	84,769	0	82,107	
Dairy	1,385,937	55,521	0	37,760	
Hogs	1,833,042	151,557	0	1,928	
All otherd	1,203,187	249.064	41.794	96.113	

Table 40. Feed consumption by class of livestock in the United States under high export prices in 1985 (Model 2.3).

Total 4,521,519 539,934 41,794 454,241

^aCorn equivalent.

^bIncludes soybean and cottonseed oilmeals and high protein grain supplements. Does not include animal protein supplements. Negative number indicates that the supply of high protein supplements by-products from animal slaughter is greater than the amount consumed as feed.

^CIncludes legume hay, nonlegume hay and pasture, corn, and sorghum silages in hay-equivalent tons.

^dIncludes sheep and lambs, broilers, turkeys, eggs, and other livestock.

The removal of the upper limit on the acreage of legume hay increase it by more than eight million acres. The alfalfa which substitutes for the TDN of the feed grains also reduces the demand for oilmeals because of the higher protein content of the legumes. The legumes are also encouraged by their nitrogen carryover, which reduces the demand for commercial nitrogen. The more efficient production pattern also results in an increase in the acres available for producing export commodities.

Policy Implications and Export Capacity

The results presented in this section have far-reaching implications for any agricultural policy which encourages all-out production. Under high prices, agricultural exports can be expected to increase substantially over the export level which U.S. agriculture experienced in the last few years. Even when the regional allocation of production is not optimal, the possible expansion of production and exports is extensive.

Three models have been presented in this section. All three models assume the same export prices (Table 24). The three models are different only with respect to the regional location of production specifications. The most restricted situation is presented in Model 2.1 and most unrestric-

113

ted in Model 2.3.

Results under high export prices with a 50 percent production restraint (Model 2.2) show only minor differences from those under high export prices with 80 percent production restraints (Model 2.1). Therefore, only two models of this section (Models 2.1 and 2.3) will be compared to the adjusted target prices model (Model 1.2). The long-run increase in agricultural exports due to changes in export prices (Figure 18) is presented in terms of the adjusted target prices model (Model 1.2) and the high export prices models (Models 2.1 and 2.3). Further increases in exports can be generated if, in addition to high export prices, the optimum regional allocation of production, subject to regional availability of resources, can be obtained (Model 2.3). Due to the increase in export prices alone, by 1985 export of feed grains could increase from 1.4 billion bushels, if the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) are realized, to 5.5 billion bushels if the high export prices (Model 2.1) are realized--up almost four times. Other substantial increases in exports due to high export prices are also obtained for wheat, soybeans, and cotton in 1985 (Figure 18).

Such a massive export level requires great reorganizations of farm production, transportation systems, and marketing channels. The possibility of export levels as high as presented in this study is highly dependent on the availability of a worldwide market for U.S. food and fiber. If the quantities produced are to be sold at the prices used in this study, a whole set of questions might be asked concerning possible buyers who can afford to buy U.S. farm products at the supply prices indicated. Under adjusted target prices (Model 1.2), total net value of the seven export commodities is \$5.9 billion (1972 dollars). This total export value increases to \$31.5 billion under high export prices (Model 2.1) and to \$33.8 billion under high export prices with no regional restriction on production in 1985 (Model 2.3). The latter is almost a sixfold increase.¹³

¹³For the year ending December 31, 1973, the exported value of the above seven crops is \$12.6 billion, which is only 71 percent of the total value of food and fibers exported in that record year amounting to \$17.7 billion [6].



If the world market prices during the 1972-74 export season were an indication of how world market prices, under a tight supply situation, are related to the prices obtained in this study, then the above amounts could be substantially higher. As mentioned by many other studies, most of the needy countries in the Far East and Africa cannot afford to buy at such high export prices, as their economies are under great stress as a result of the energy and food price increases. In summary, the question of U.S. agricultural export capacity thus is very much tied to the question of buyers who can finance the purchase of U.S. agricultural products at these supply prices. In reality, U.S. agricultural exports may actually be determined either by the financial capability of the importing countries or international organizations which help subsidize such levels of exports on behalf of poor countries. No international organization has yet come forth to do so.

Land use

Land is one of the main resources of agricultural production in the United States. The abundance of agricultural farm land in the United

116

States was a major reason for farm surplus capacity in the 1950s and 1960s. With the increase in exports, land use can become more intensive. If, at least on a national basis, land was not a limiting resource, the combination of soil erosion restriction and high export levels by 1985 could change this situation drastically. Land use under adjusted target prices when soil erosion is limited to a maximum of ten tons per acre (Model 1.2) is compared
with land use under high export prices and a maximum soil loss of five tons per acre (Models 2.1 and 2.3, Table 41). Model 2.3, as mentioned earlier, does not specify any restriction on the regional location of production.

ld

8

ie.

S

S.

ion

his

red

The tight supply of land under a five-ton soil loss limit is clearly presented in Table 41. Not only a very small number of acres remains unused under high export prices with no restriction on the location of production (Model 2.3), but most of the unused land (about 90 percent) is on land classes V to VIII and subject to high erosion. Of the total unused land, only about one million acres (less than one-half of one percent of the total available land) is on land classes I to IV, which under normal conditions has a good chance of meeting the maximum of five tons per acre soil loss requirements.

The high commodity prices are the major reason for the land rents (marginal value products) increasing more than threefold (Figure 19) from the adjusted target prices analysis (Model 1.2). The increase in land use attributed to the removal of the regional production restraints brings an additional 4.6 million acres into cultivation. This increase in land use is accompanied by an increase in the average land rent of 17 percent

117

from \$92.62 per acre under high export prices with regional production restraints (Model 2.1) to \$108.35 per acre under high export prices with no regional production restraints (Model 2.3). This substantial increase in land rents represents the increasing opportunities for agricultural land use as exports increase. As happened during the 1972-73 year, such

	Model 1,2	Model 2.1	Model 2.3		
Available land dry	344,172	(1000 acres) 344,172	344,172		
Available land irrigated	29,437	29,437	29,437		
Available land total	373,609	373,609	373,609		
Dry cropland used	309,191	330,205	334,566		
Irrigated cropland used	_28,082	_28,785	29,053		
Total land used	337,273	358,990	363,619		
Unused dry cropland	34,981	13,967	9,606		
Unused irrigated cropland	1,355	652	384		
Unused land total	36,336	14,619	9,990		
Percent of unused land ^b	9.73%	3.91%	2.67%		
Unused land group V-VIII	11,874	9,977	8,971		
Percent of the unused land C	32.68%	68.25%	89.80%		

Table 41. Land use under adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) and high export prices (Models 2.1 and 2.3) in 1985.ª

^aFor endogenous crop uses only.

0

^bTotal unused land as a percent of the total available land.

118

Unused land in land group V-VIII as a total of the unused land.

high land rents represent very high gains for farmers who are landowners. However, high land rents tend to discourage new farmers from entering agriculture. Not only does the purchase price of land become very high as a result of the increase in land rents, but also the possible fluctuations in land prices could be much greater if the export levels change from year to year. Relatively, a small change in exports could trigger a much wider fluctuation in land rents and land prices.



D 17 13 in 2.3 2. 2.3 119

> SOUTH NORTH WEST WEST

Water use

In contrast to land use, even under moderate exports, most of the water which can be used by agriculture is being utilized. In some regions, more water is available than what is actually being used, such as the Columbia-North Pacific region, but only small changes in the number of irrigated acres are noticed due to a lack of developed land in the region or no water transfer methods from these regions to other regions where developed land is available. As mentioned earlier, this study assumes no further water development after 1980. This implies that the regional water supply becomes almost completely inelastic by that time. The effect of high export prices (Model 2.1) is to increase the marginal value product of water (Figure 20). Overall, the marginal value product of water under high export prices (Model 2.1) increases more than \$6 per acre-foot (54 percent) from the average water price obtained under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2).

For some regions, the water value increase is much higher than the average increase in water value. For example, water values in the Arkansas-White-Red River basin are up by \$21.37 per acre-foot (66 percent), and water values in the Rio Grande basin are up by \$58.43 per acre-foot or 251 percent as a result of the high export prices (Model 2.1).

120

From the national point of view this study shows that even without additional water development after 1980, U.S. agriculture has the capacity for both meeting domestic demand and producing very large quantities of food and fiber for export. However, considering the regional water needs,



2.1 1.2 2.1 1/ CALIF. COLUM. NORTH SOUTH PACIFIC PACIFIC

use, and prices, some expansion of water development can be economical by 1985 in regions where additional water could be supplied by conventional water development projects for less than the regional marginal value products of water obtained in this study (Figure 20). Of course, the marginal value product of water obtained in this study is contingent on the high commodity prices indicated previously.

Food cost and farm income

The high export prices assumed under Models 2.1 and 2.3 substantially affect the cost of food and farm income. All domestic commodity prices increase with the export prices, from the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) to the high export prices (Models 2.1 and 2.3). However, while all export prices are double their previous level, the national average domestic commodity prices do not increase by the same proportion (Table 42). The consistent differences between the export prices and the domestic prices, as mentioned previously, is due to the average transportation costs from the producing regions to the export points.

The result of removing the regional production restraints (Model 2.3)

122

is, in general, lower domestic prices. This reduction in domestic commodity prices is accompanied by a substantial increase in exports, implying that higher exports do not necessarily require higher domestic prices if the expansion in production is accompanied by the appropriate regional production adjustments and increased specialization. The analysis does not cover the impact that these adjustments have on the nonfarm rural areas.

Table 42.	Commodity national	average prices under adjusted to	arget
	prices (Model 1.2)	and high export prices (Models .	2.1 and
	2.3) in 1985. ^a		

Commodity	Unit	Model 1.2	Model 2.1	Model 2.3
Corn	(bu.)	1.45	2.86	2.82
Sorghum	(bu.)	1.93	3.28	3.11
Barley	(bu.)	1.28	2.53	2.58
Oats	(bu.)	.68	1.26	1.12
Wheat	(bu.)	1.92	3.80	3.70
Soybeans	(bu.)	2.70	5.58	5.41
Legume hay *	(ton)	32.18	46.18	48.30
Nonlegume hay	(ton)	34.43	45.46	45.91
Silage	(ton)	11.30	14.66	15.45
Cotton	(1b.)	.35	.60	.56
Sugar beets	(ton)	10.49	13.24	10.32
Pork ^b	(cwt.)	41.59	56.94	56.79
Milk ^C	(cwt.)	5.46	6.73	6.22
Beefb	(cwt.)	71.23	89.60	90.94

^a1972 dollars.

1

2)

y

^bCarcass weight equivalent.

^CMilk equivalent.

Overall per capita cost of food (Table 43) increases by only 11

percent from the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) to the high export prices (Model 2.1). The increase in the per capita cost of food is not proportionate to the commodity prices, as the consumption level of many products fall with the higher prices.

Item	Unit	Model 1.2	Model 2.1	Model 2.3
Per capita cost ^a	dollars	170.36	192.06	189.70
Net value of export	million dollars	5,940	31,530	33,779
Total soil loss	million ton	1,722.8	997.1	1,010.4
Average soil loss	ton/acre	5.1	2.78	2.78
Average water value	\$/acre foot	12.59	18.93	19.53
Average land rent	dollars/acre	31.60	92.62	108.36
Total nitrogen purchased	million 1b.	16,445.7	23,905.2	23,375.2
N purchased per acre	1b.	48.76	66.59	64.29
N applied per acre	1b.	69.86	82.55	79.88
Total farm income ^b	million dollars	14,305	37,684	43,715

Table 43. Other results summarizing adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) and high export prices (Models 2.1 and 2.3) in 1985.

^aFor raw endogenous commodities only.

^bFarm income includes total return to land, water, and labor.

Farm income, defined as the total return to land, water, and labor, increases by about 163 percent (Table 43) from the adjusted target prices and moderate exports (Model 2.1), to the high prices and high exports (Model 2.3). Under complete regional adjustments (Model 2.3), farm income can be even higher. Under high exports, however, farmers may possibly be subject to higher costs of all inputs resulting from the higher demand for these inputs.

Environmental impact

.3

70

79

¥.

78

53

36

2

29

88

15

In the framework of this study, no serious economic problems seem to be presented if soil loss is restricted to a maximum of five tons per acre. It is interesting to note that the total soil loss, under high exports with the 5-ton per acre maximum soil loss (Model 2.1), is only 60 percent of the soil loss under moderate exports and the 10-ton maximum per acre soil loss (Model 1.2, Table 43). Not only do soil loss restrictions not seem to pose a problem for increasing exports, but by appropriate reallocation of production, exports can be increased and soil loss can be reduced at the same time, as the comparison between Models 1.2 and 2.3 (Table 43) indicates.

Nitrogen purchased is defined as the amount of nitrogen applied less the total nitrogen obtained from livestock manure and legume production. Under high export alternatives (Models 2.1 and 2.3), the quantity of nitrogen purchased is up by almost 50 percent over the level in the moderate export alternative (Model 1.2, Table 43). This is mainly due to an increase in cultivated acreages but also to a larger application per acre which becomes profitable under the high export and domestic prices. It is interesting to note (Table 43) that both the total nitrogen purchased and

125

the nitrogen applied per acre can be reduced when a complete regional production adjustment is made (Model 2.3). This is due to a better allocation of crops and livestock, and hence, to a better utilization of all available

input resources.

VI. ANALYSIS OF FERTILIZER RESTRICTIONS UNDER VARYING EXPORT LEVELS

The fertilizer restriction alternatives detailed in the following section are constructed to evaluate the effect of these restrictions on U.S. agriculture production capacity and export potential. The effect of the fertilizer restrictions may vary is conjunction with different export levels. Thus, the analysis is carried out for two levels of exports. Model 3.1 is a follow-up of Model 1.2, the adjusted target price export evaluation. The level of exports under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) is fixed, forcing Model 3.1 to export the identical quantities of agricultural commodities but under restricted fertilizer use. The same principle is applied to the analysis and the construction of Model 3.2-testricted fertilizer use at high export levels, using Model 2.1 as the base.

The principle mechanism in which the fertilizer restriction works in the study is via changes in the crop yields. It should be mentioned here that while the restrictions are based on nitrogen applications, they

actually imply restrictions on the use of all fertilizers. This results as the use of nitrogen, phosphorous, and potassium (N, P, and K), in deriving yields, is based on a fixed relationship in the study's production functions; any change in the use of nitrogen is accompanied by a proportionate change in the use of phosphorus and potassium. The maximum allowed per acre application of nitrogen for the crops in the study (Table 44) is applied uniformly to all the crop acreages over all producing areas.

Crop	Maximum N per acre (1b.)
Barley	55.0
Corn grain	110.0
Corn silage	110.0
Cotton	80.0
Legume hay	none
Nonlegume hay	none
Oats	55.0
Sorghum grain	110.0
Sorghum silage	110.0
Soybeans	none
Sugar beets	none
Wheat	55.0

ce

S

es

пê

base.

V-

ionate

Table 44. Nitrogen restriction levels assumed for each crop in 1985 under restricted nitrogen models (Models 3.1 and 3.2).

Fertilizer Restrictions Under Moderate Agricultural Exports in 1985 (Model 3.1)

Model 3.1 is the first of the two fertilizer restriction alternatives. The model evaluates the economic implications for the agricultural industry as a result of imposed nitrogen-use limits (Table 44). The export levels obtained under the adjusted target prices (Model 1.2) are set as fixed

levels to be maintained. All other assumptions of Models 1.2 and 3.1 are identical. Even though the absolute value of the results is presented, the interpretation of the results is done by observing the relative changes between the two models.

Commodity production and utilization

Only minor changes in production and domestic consumption occur under restricted fertilizer use at moderate export levels (Table 45). The small changes taking place reflect the same export levels and per capita consumption of the commodities and a slight variability in the livestock rations encouraged by the production possibility changes resulting from the ferti-

1.1	7	P	r	T.	pr)	2	t	r	1	0	F	1	O	n	100
	. 8.0	~	*	***	~	<i></i>	~	~	-	~	-	-	~		

Commodities	Unit	Production	Domestic Consumption	Exports
Corn	million bu.	5,560.7	4,521.0	1,039.7
Sorghum	0	454.0	306.5	147.5
Barley	11	422.9	422.9	0.0
Oats	11	761.4	523.2	238.2
Wheat	11	1,815.7	709.5	1,106.2
Soybean	0	2,300.9	1,396.0	904.9
Legume hay	million tons	178.3	178.3	0.0
Nonlegume hay		186.2	186.2	0.0
Silage	0	562.3	562.3	0.0
Cotton	million bales	12.1	8.0	4.1
Sugar beets	million tons	26.4	26.4	0.0
Porka	million cwt.	159.3	161.7	-2.4 ^b
Milk products ^c	11	1,167.3	1,170.6	-3.3 ^b
Beef ^a		332.0	348.1	-16.1 ^b

Table 45.	Commodity production	and utilizat	tion under	restricted	nitrogen
	use at moderate expo	rts in 1985	(Model 3.1)).	

128

-

^aCarcass weight equivalent.

^bImports.

^CMilk equivalent.

Nitrogen use

2.0

The imposition of the per acre nitrogen restrictions results in a reduction of 1,193 million pounds of nitrogen use per year (Table 46) as compared to unrestricted nitrogen use at moderate exports. The nitrogen use level is reflected in a reduction of nitrogen purchased. The wastes from livestock provide a relatively constant amount of fertilizer, and the livestock enterprises cover the cost of application. Using 14 cents per pound as the average price for nitrogen, this reduction in nitrogen use amounts to an annual reduction in farm expenditures of \$167 million.

table 46.	Nitrogen use	by major zones at	moderate	exports under un-
	restricted n	itrogen use (Model	1.2) and	restricted nitrogen
	use (Model 3	.1) in 1985.		interogen

7		and all the set of the local distances of the	
Zone	Model 1.2	Model 3.1	Percent change
	(million	lbs.)	
United States	16,446	15,254	-7.25
North Atlantic	256	224	-12.50
South Atlantic	1,199	1,122	-6.42
North Central	3,427	3,151	-8.05
South Central	5,266	5,152	-2.16

warming the start				1
Southwest	698	509	-27.08	
Northwest	1,113	1,041	-6.47	
Great Plains	4,487	4,054	-9.65	

Yield reduction

Comparing the average national yields per acre under restricted nitrogen use at moderate exports (Model 3.1) with the unrestricted nitrogen use yields (Model 1.2) shows: barley, down 0.5 bushel per acre or 1.2 percent; corn grain, down 2.5 bushels per acre or 2 percent; corn silage, down 0.1 ton per acre or one percent; oats, down 0.2 bushel per acre or less than one-half of one percent; and wheat, down 0.2 bushel per acre, about one-half of one percent. One reason behind the small national yield reduction from nitrogen restrictions is the incorporation of rotations which include legume crops in the study; when the per acre nitrogen application is restricted, these legume rotations become more attractive and replace the continuous rotations used previously. This is one of the main reasons for the high proportion of legume crop acreages in the restricted nitrogen models.

Land use

The restriction on the application of nitrogen results in an important land and nitrogen substitution. While total nitrogen used declines by

130

1,193 million pounds from the unrestricted nitrogen use (Model 1.2), total acres under cultivation increase by 2.1 million acres (Table 47). Under restricted nitrogen at moderate exports (Model 3.1), this substitution rate is one acre of land for every 560 pounds of commercial fertilizer applied but does not necessarily hold for total nitrogen use, as a large proportion of the nitrogen is supplied from legume crops and livestock wastes.

Table 47.	Land use by major z	ones at m	oderate expo	rts under	unrestricted
	nitrogen use (Model 3.1) in 1985	1.2) and	restricted	nitrogen	use (Model

11

int

stes,

Zone	Model 1.2	Model 3.1	Percent Change
United States	337,273	339,402	+.63
North Atlantic	8,127	8,309	+2.24
South Atlantic	15,533	15,640	+.69
North Central	135,689	136,193	+.37
South Central	83,207	83,311	+.12
Great Plains	62,582	63,353	+1.23
Northwest	13,786	14,008	+1.61
Southwest	18,349	18,588	+1.30

The increase in total land utilization is not distributed equally over all crops. Because of the reduction in yields and the maintenance of the same export levels as in the unrestricted nitrogen situation, an increase in acreage occurs, especially for the crops being exported. Compared with the unrestricted nitrogen use at moderate exports (Model 1.2), corn grain acreage increases 1.5 million acres; cotton acreage increases

131

240,000 acres; legume hay increases 173,000 acres; and wheat acreage increases 360,000 acres. Acres of the other crops change only slightly. Overall, land rent as represented by the marginal value product increases by \$1.46 per acre as a result of the restriction on fertilizer use at moderate exports. A much larger increase in land rent occurs, for example, in the North Central region where land rent is increased by \$4.83 per acre or 45 percent as a result of the restricted fertilizer use.

Commodity prices and farm income

The restriction on fertilizer application at moderate exports resulted in a small increase in commodity prices (Table 48). Such a small change in commodity prices is also reflected in the small change in the average

Table 48.	U.S. avera	ge commodi	Lty	supp	oly, locat	tion, and	l to	otal	prices	under
	restricted	nitrogen	use	at	moderate	exports	in	1985	(Model	3.1).

Commodity	Unit	Supply price	Location price	Total price
		(Do	llars per unit)	
Corn	(Bu.)	1.41	0.05	1.46
Sorghum	(Bu.)	1.63	0.35	1.97
Barley	(Bu.)	1.31	0.00	1.31
Oats	(Bu.)	0.70	0.00	0.70
Wheat	(Bu.)	1.63	0.31	1.95
Soybeans	(Bu.)	2.68	0.05	2.73
Legume hay	(Ton)	28.96	3.68	32.64
Nonlegume hay	(Ton)	35.03	0.00	35.03
Silage	(Ton)	10.73	0.92	11.65
Cotton	(Lb.)	0.29	0.07	0.36
Porka	(Cwt.)	41.84	0.18	42.02
Milkb	(Cwt)	5.05	0.45	5.50

endogenous commodities only) under restricted nitrogen use at moderate exports (Model 3.1) increased only \$2.03 (1.1 percent) per year over the unrestricted

fertilizer-use level (Model 1.2). This increase in the per capita cost of food and fibers indicates the small impact of a nitrogen restriction on farm prices when livestock wastes and legumes can be substituted in the rotation and only moderate export levels are experienced.

ed

orts

ted

Fertilizer Restrictions Under High Agricultural Exports in 1985 (Model 3.2)

Model 3.2 addresses itself to the problem of restrictions on the application of fertilizer while facing an expanded demand for the export of U.S. agricultural products. If high exports such as those obtained in this study should occur in the future, the question is: Can the U.S. agricultural sector maintain the high level of exports and still reduce nitrogen use? The analysis covers the impacts on the agricultural industry and on the U.S. consumer's food and fiber budget while maintaining exports at their high levels.

The comparison is based on forcing the export level of agricultural commodities to the level obtained under the unrestricted fertilizer use at high export analysis (Model 2.1, Table 25). Model 2.1 simulates a high export situation when only limited shifts in the location of production take place as compared with the 1969 location of production [24]. In

addition, Model 2.1 calls for a five-ton maximum soil loss per acre, with no restriction on nitrogen use. Except for adding the restrictions on fertilizer application (Table 44), Models 2.1 and 3.2 have the same set of assumptions.

Nitrogen use

The total reduction in nitrogen application under restricted fertilizer use at high exports (Model 3.2) is 2,668 million pounds or 1.3 million tons of nitrogen per year (Table 49). This is equal to a reduction in fertilizer purchases of \$373.5 million per year with a nitrogen price equal

Table 49. Nitrogen use by major zones at high exports under unrestricted nitrogen use (Model 2.1) and restricted nitrogen use (Model 3.2) in 1985.

Zone	Model 2.1	Model 3.2	Percent Change
United Chates	(mill	ion 1bs.)	11.00
United States	23,905	21,223	-11.22
North Atlantic	272	203	-25.37
South Atlantic	1,919	1,648	-14.12
North Central	7,427	6,248	-15.87
South Central	6,622	6,275	-5.24
Great Plains	5,636	5,159	-8.46
Northwest	1,260	1,119	-11.19
Southwest	769	570	-25.88

1 1

to 14 cents per pound. The 11 percent reduction in nitrogen application under high exports is larger than the reduction in nitrogen applied under restricted nitrogen use at moderate exports (Model 3.1). The larger reduction is consistent with farmers harvesting more acres and utilizing more fertilizer per acre under the higher exports and higher price alternatives (Model 3.2). The higher commodity prices yield a higher return for nitrogen than the return for nitrogen obtained under the lower price alternatives. This indicates larger reduction in use on the highly fertilized lands and some reduction on other lands as more acres approach the limits (Table 44) and some acres exceed the limits.

Land use

Zer

1

e.

The yield reductions, when accompanied by the same high export level and thus the same production level, result in a large substitution of land for fertilizer. Total land use under restricted fertilizer use and at high exports increases by 3.3 million acres (Table 50) above the unrestricted fertilizer use alternative at high exports (Model 2.1). The average rate of substitution of land for nitrogen, at the level of production obtained under Model 2.3, is one acre for every 830 pounds of commercial nitrogen applied. Not only is more land substituted for more nitrogen, when nitrogen is restricted at high exports, but also the average rate of substitution is greater than one acre for every 560 pounds of nitrogen determined under restricted nitrogen use at moderate exports.

This fact can be explained by noticing that under high exports (Model 2.1 and 3.2), the marginal productivities of both land and nitrogen are smaller than under moderate exports (Models 1.2 and 3.1). However, the marginal productivity of nitrogen under high exports is declining relatively more than the marginal productivity of land. Therefore, the rate of land for nitrogen substitution under high exports (830 pounds of N) is greater than under moderate exports (560 pounds of N).

Table 50.	. Land use	by major	zones	at high	exports	under un	restr	icted
	nitrogen	use (Mode	1 2.1)	and res	stricted	nitrogen	use	(Model
	3.2) in .	1985.						

Zone	Model 2.1	Model 3.2	Percent Change		
United States	1,000 358,990	acres 362,220	+.90		
North Atlantic	8,513	8,757	+2.87		
South Atlantic	20,051	21,447	+6.96		
North Central	141,692	142,156	+.33		
South Central	85,436	86,023	+.69		
Great Plains	69,018	69,060	+.06		
Northwest	14,959	15,189	+1.54		
Southwest	19,321	19,588	+1.36		

The sharp increase in land use also is reflected in the land rents (marginal value products). The average land rent increases from \$92.62 per acre under unrestricted fertilizer use at high exports (Model 2.1, Table 29) to \$132.25 per acre after the fertilizer restrictions are imposed at high exports (Model 3.2, Table 51). This is an increase of almost 43 percent in land rent. Land rent in the North Central region increases from \$112.08 per acre to \$160.71 due to fertilizer-use restrictions at high exports. The largest relative change in land rent occurs in the South Atlantic region, where land rent increases by 73 percent as a result of the fertilizer use restrictions at high exports.

Table	51.	Shadow	prid	ces (m	arginal	value	products)	of altern	nativ	e I	Land
		classes	by	major	zones	under	restricted	nitrogen	use	at	high
		exports	in	1985	(Model	3.2).					

Zone	1, 11	IIIE, IVE	- V	V-V	Total ^a		
	(Dollars per acre)						
United States	160.55	103.00	99,86	34.10	132.35		
North Atlantic	47.15	27.29	21.98	0.00	37.19		
South Atlantic	122.15	64.03	65.20	6.93	98.70		
North Central	176.07	143.58	108.79	39.12	160.71		
South Central	169.89	105.96	120.03	83.97	137.62		
Great Plains	133.80	77.32	80.33	28.68	100.78		
Northwest	202.90	105.43	92.84	48.66	128.16		
Southwest	129.70	83.86	82.45	19.78	97.38		

^aExcluding other hay and pasture lands.

Water use

Total water consumption increases by 616,000 acre-feet from the unrestricted fertilizer use at high exports (Model 2.1) to 101.7 million acre-feet under the restricted fertilizer use at high exports alternative (Model 3.2). Overall, the value of water increases from \$18.93 per acre-

foot under unrestricted fertilizer use at high exports (Model 2.1) to

\$21.50 per acre-foot under restricted fertilizer use at high exports (Model 3.2), an increase of 13 percent in water prices.

Commodity prices

In contrast to the results obtained under restricted fertilizer use at moderate exports (Model 3.1), restricted fertilizer use at high exports (Model 3.2) indicates a sharp increase in all commodity prices (Table 52). Nationally, the increases range from a rise of 16 percent for pork (from \$56.94 per cwt. in Model 2.1) to \$66.23 per hundredweight under restricted fertilizer use at high exports in Model 3.2, to a high of 33 percent for oats (from \$1.26 per bushel in Model 3.2). Other price increases include: sorghum grain, 25 percent; wheat, 28 percent; soybeans, 21 percent; and beef, 20 percent. Corn and cotton are the only crops which display a reduction in price. However, this is due to a simultaneous effect of export restrictions imposed on Models 2.1 and 2.3, and regional location production restrictions on the price of these crops and not to the effect of restrictions on fertilizer use. When export restrictions are not imposed, such in the case of Models 2.1 and 3.1, all prices are higher under the restricted nitrogen alternative.

The average per capita cost of food and fibers (includes raw endogenous

1.38

3

commodities only), based on population of 242 million by 1985, increases from \$192.06 per year under unrestricted fertilizer use at high exports (Model 2.1) to \$233.40 per year under restricted fertilizer use at high exports (Model 3.2), an increase of 16 percent.

Table 52.	U.S. average commodity supply, location, and total price	ces
	under restricted nitrogen use at high exports in 1985	
	(Model 3.2).	

Commodity	Unit	Supply price	Location price	Total price
		(Dollars per unit)	
Corn	(Bu.)	2.74	0.10	2.83
Sorghum	(Bu.)	3.33	0.77	4.10
Barley	(Bu.)	3.26	0.00	3.26
Oats	(Bu.)	1.68	0.00	1.68
Wheat	(Bu.)	4.18	0.67	4.85
Soybeans	(Bu.)	6.60	0.18	6.78
Legume hay	(Ton)	52.26	5.28	57.54
Nonlegume hay	(Ton)	55.31	0.00	55.31
Silage	(Ton)	17.05	2.30	19.35
Cotton	(Lb.)	0.49	0.07	0.56
Porka	(Cwt.)	65.71	0.52	66.23
Milkb	(Cwt.)	6.81	0.67	7.48
Beef ^a	(Cwt.)	106.02	1.01	107.03

^aCarcass weight equivalent.

^bMilk equivalent.

d,

US

Policy Implications

The main purpose of the reduced fertilizer models is to evaluate

the economic effects on U.S. agriculture of a reduction in the amount of commercial nitrogen used per acre as an environmental measure. This change would serve both energy conservation and environmental concerns. The reduction in nitrogen use is entirely a reduction in nitrogen purchased, as farmers essentially utilize all of the nitrogen available from legume crops and livestock residue before purchasing commercial fertilizer. The analysis and the comparisons are made by observing the different effects which nitrogen, and therefore, all fertilizers could have on commodity prices, nitrogen, land, and water use at moderate exports (Models 1.2 and 3.1) and high exports (Models 2.1 and 3.2).

Land for nitrogen substitution

The percent reduction in nitrogen use, as can be expected, is much larger under high exports (Figure 21). This is mainly due to higher rates of nitrogen application per acre under the unrestricted nitrogen use at high exports, resulting from the higher commodity prices. The regional nitrogen-use reduction ranges from a low of 2.16 percent in the South Central region to 27.08 percent in the Southwest under moderate export levels. The regional reduction in nitrogen use under the high export situation, while higher on the average, has a smaller range between the lowest reduction and the highest reduction than is experienced with the moderate exports (Figure 21).

The increased land use, due to the fertilizer restriction, is expected to increase land rents. However, the magnitude of the increase in land

140

31

rents is greatly dependent upon the export levels. Under restricted fertilizer use at moderate exports, the national land rent increases only \$1.46 per acre. At the same time, under the restricted fertilizer use at high exports, national land rent is up almost 40 dollars per acre (Figure 22). The increase in land rents resulting from restricted fertilizer use varies greatly between regions; the more productive regions display greater changes



Moderate exports

High exports-





1

1.

U

142

Moderate exports

High exports



SOUTH -WEST

in land rents. In summary, the imposition of fertilizer-use restrictions at high exports can be expected to have a substantial effect on land rents, the profitability of the agricultural industry, and eventually on the cost of food.

Water use

The effect of a nitrogen restriction on water use is reflected through changes in the value of water rather than the amount of water used. This is due, to the relatively inelastic water supply assumed in the model after 1980. The characteristics of the value of water changes under restricted fertilizer use are quite similar to land rent changes (Figure 23). Only small increases in the value of water take place under restricted fertilizer use at moderate exports. On the other hand, under restricted fertilizer use at high exports, significant increases in the value of water occur in the western basins. The over all value of water rises by \$2.57 per acre-foot under restricted fertilizer application at high exports. For some river basins, however, the change in the value of water is substantially higher (Ark.-White-Red, Lower Colorado, and Great Basin). No change in the value of water is seen for the Rio Grande River basin where

143

the value of water (marginal value product) is the highest of all cases.

This is due to the fact that the shortage of water in the Rio Grande basin is being satisfied by desalinization of sea water at \$100 per acre-foot.

World food costs

In summary, the implications of the above results, as to the possible effect of fertilizer-use restrictions resulting either because of environmental



1

Moderate exports

High exports

1/

-

144



1/

Great Basin

Columbia North Pacific

California South Pacific

concern or because of an energy shortage, are highly dependent on the level of demand maintained when nitrogen use is restricted. The moderate export level presented is near the 1972-73 export levels of the agricultural commodities. The results indicate that no great adverse effects can be expected on agricultural production in the long run if exports remain at that level. Of course, if the supply of nitrogen is short for a given year, some reduction in yields and production can be expected for that year. However, given sufficient time, farmers could substitute other resources for nitrogen and alter their farming methods in such a way that more nitrogen will be supplied from legume crops and most of the nitrogen in livestock residue will be returned to the soil. Under such circumstances, production, exports, and the cost of food can be back near their long-run trends.

A completely different picture exists if nitrogen use is restricted at high export levels. We could expect a sharp rise in the food bill if exports remain at the same high level. The higher price of farm products increases the farm level price of food and also increases farm income by a greater proportion than the increase in the magnitude of the consumers' food bill.

145

The high cost of food also affects the balance of payments. Foreign buyers of U.S. produced food and fiber would need to pay \$4.5 billion more than for the identical quantities purchased under the unrestricted nitrogen situation. This is a 14 percent increase in the cost of American food and fiber for importing countries.

REFERENCES

- Blakeslee, L.L., E.O. Heady, and C.F. Framingham. <u>World food</u> production, demand, and trade. Center for Agricultural and Rural Development. Iowa State University Press. Ames. 1973.
- 2. Conservation Needs Inventory Committee. National inventory of soil and water conservation needs 1967. U.S. Dept. of Agr. Stat. Bul. No. 461. Jan. 1971.
 - Develen, Warren. Energy crisis as it relates to fertilizer supplies. Speech before Senator Clark, Ft. Dodge, Iowa. Feb. 1974.
 - Economic Research Service. Changes in farm production and efficiency: A summary report, 1971. U.S. Dept. of Agr. Econ. Res. Serv. Stat. Bul. No. 233 (rev.). June 1971.
 - Fertilizer situation. U.S. Dept. of Agr. Econ. Res. Serv.
 FDS-273. June 1974.
 - 6. _____. Foreign agricultural trade of the United States. U.S. Dept. of Agr. Econ. Res. Serv. Foreign Agricultural Service. 1974.

- 7. <u>World food situation and prospects to 1985, The</u>. U.S. Dept. of Agr. Econ. Res. Serv., Foreign Agr. Econ. Rpt. No. 98. Dec. 1974.
- 8. Food and Agricultural Organization. <u>Assessment of the world food</u> situation present and future. FAO, United Nations. Rome. 1974.

- 9. Heady, E.O., H.C. Madsen, K.J. Nicol, and S.H. Hargrove. <u>Agri-</u> <u>cultural water policies and the environment</u>. Iowa State University. Center for Agricultural and Rural Development. CARD Report 40T. Ames. June 1972.
- 10. Marry, R.C., B.E. Reevers. <u>Estimated use of water in the U.S. in</u> <u>1970</u>. U.S. Dept. of the Interior. Geological Survey Circ. 676. Washington, D.C. 1972.
- 11. Mayer, L.V., and S.H. Hargrove. <u>Food costs, farm incomes and crop</u> <u>yields</u>: With restrictions on fertilizer use. Iowa State University. Center for Agricultural and Economic Development. CAED Report 38. Ames. March 1971.
- 12. Nicol, Kenneth J., and Earl O. Heady. <u>Model for regional agricultural</u> <u>analysis of land and water use, agricultural structure and the</u> <u>environment: A documentation</u>. Iowa State University. Center for Agricultural and Rural Development. Ames. Oct. 1975.
- 13. _____, E.O. Heady, and H.C. Madsen. Models of soil loss, land and water use, spatial agriculture structure, and the environment. Iowa State University. Center for Agricultural and Rural Development. CARD Report 49T. Ames. July 1974.

147

14. Smith, G.E. Contribution of fertilizers to water pollution. Pre-

sented to the seminar on water pollution as related to agriculture. (Mimeo.). April 1968.

- 15. Soil Conservation Service, Engineering Division. Procedure for computing sheet and rill erosion on project areas. U.S. Dept. of Agr. Soil Conserv. Serv. Tech. Rel. No. 51. Sept. 1972.
- 16. Stanford, George, C.G. England, and R.W. Taylor. Fertilizer use and water quality. U.S. Dept. of Agr. Res. Serv. ARS 41-168. Oct. 1970.
- Statistical Reporting Service. Agricultural prices annual summary
 1973. U.S. Dept. of Agr. Stat. Pr. 1-3 (74). June 1974.
- 18. <u>Agricultural prices, April 1974</u>. U.S. Dept. of Agr. Stat. Pr. 1 (4-74). May 1974.
- 19. _____. Crop production, 1973 annual summary: Acreage, yield, production, by states. U.S. Dept. of Agr. Stat. Rpt. Serv. CRPR-2-1 (74). Jan. 16, 1974.
- 20. Stoecker, A. A quadratic programming model of U.S. agriculture in 1980: Theory and application. Unpublished Ph.D. dissertation. Iowa State University. Ames. 1974.
- 21. U.S. Congress. Act to extend and amend the agriculture act of 1970, An. Public Lay 93-86, 93rd Congress, S. 1888. Aug. 10, 1973.

148

a 17

- 22. U.S. Department of Agriculture. <u>Agricultural statistics, 1973</u>. U.S. Dept. of Agr. 1973.
- <u>1947 Handbook of agriculture charts</u>. Agr. Handbook No.
 477. U.S. Dept. of Agr. Oct. 1974.
- 24. U.S. Department of Commerce. U.S. census of agriculture, 1969.

Vol. I. Statistics for the states and counties. U.S. Govt. Print. Off. Washington, D.C. 1971.

- 25. U.S. Water Resources Council. <u>OBERS projections regional economic</u> <u>activity in the U.S.</u> Series D population. U.S. Dept. of Commerce and U.S. Dept. of Agr. Washington, D.C. 1972.
- 26. <u>Water resources, regions and subregions for the national</u> <u>assessment of water and related land resources</u>. U.S. Govt. Print. Off. Washington, D.C. July 1970.
- 27. Wischmeier, Walter H., and Dwight D. Smith. Predicting rainfallerosion losses from cropland east of the Rocky Mountains. U.S. Dept. Agr., Agr. Handbook No. 282. May 1965.



1. 1.



ADDITIONAL COPIES of this publication can be obtained by writing the Center for Agricultural and Rural Development, 578 East Hall, Iowa State University, Ames, Iowa 50011. Price is \$2.50 each. A complete listing of all Center publications can be obtained from the same address.

Recent Center reports include:

- CARD 53 Income and Structure of American Agriculture Under Future Alternatives of Farm Size Policies and Exports. February 1975. 109 pp. (\$2.00)
- CARD 54 An Interregional Analysis of U.S. Domestic Grain Transportation. February, 1975. 199 pp. (\$3.00)
- CARD 55 Relative Contributions of Major Technological Factors and Moisture Stress to Increased Grain Yields in the Midwest, 1930-71. March, 1975. 43 pp. (\$1.00)
- CARD 56 Alternative Futures for American Agricultural Structure, Policies, Income, Employment, and Exports: A Recursive Simulation. June, 1975. 144 pp. (\$2.00)
- CARD 57 Implications of Application of Soil Conservancy and Environmental Regulations in Iowa Within a National Framework. June, 1975. (\$2.00)
- CARD 58 Growth and Characteristics of Rural Industrialization in Iowa. July, 1975. 111 pp. (\$2.00)
- CARD 59 Projected 1980 Overall Agricultural Employment By Regions, Commodities, and Related Sectors. August, 1975. 85 pp. (\$2.00)

CARD 60 A World Food Analysis: Grain Supply and Export Capacity of American Agriculture Under Various Production and Consumption Alternatives. Sept. 1975. 93 pp. (\$2.00)

CARD 61 Economies of Size in Swine Production Under Different Production Methods and Phases. Sept. 1975. 71 pp. (\$2.00)

Barcode Inside

